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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

BEBBEXZMAERAR (TBXA]) AR ([RIZER]) HEe

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.
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Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on
GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.
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Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take
no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.
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This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Synergy Group Holdings International Limited (the
“Company’) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, (i) the information contained in this report
is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and (ii) there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Corporate Information
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Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Man Fai Mansfield

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lam Arthur*

(Vice Chairman)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lam Chung Ho Alastair

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chung Koon Yan
Mr. Cheung Yick Hung Jackie
Dr. Wong Chi Ying Anthony

Registered Office in Cayman Islands

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Headquarters and Principal Place of
Business in Hong Kong

Room 404B, 4/F

Block B, Seaview Estate
Nos.4-6 Watson Road
North Point

Hong Kong

Company Website

WWW.Synergy-group.com

* Mr. Lam Arthur was appointed as the Vice Chairman of the Board
with effect from 3 February 2016. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 3 February 2016.
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Financial Summary

MEHME
2016 2015 2014 2013
—E-XRE —E—RHF —ZTNFE —T—=F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FHET TFET FHET
Revenue WA 130,068 111,494 79,935 70,843
Leasing services of fRBA R A & RS
lighting systems 21,383 8,831 10,020 8,672
Trading of lighting RAERE S
products 78,896 74,856 42,059 27,179
Consultancy service AR 29,789 27,807 27,856 34,992
Profit attributable to the NAEVEE AEG R T
owners of the Company 35,402 26,229 23,538 22,062
Basic earnings per share BREKREF|
(HK cents) (L) 71 6.3 5.7 5.3
Total assets BERRE 189,416 118,713 103,852 85,713
Total liabilities BERE 57,180 21,810 68,782 34,165
Net assets BEFE 132,236 96,903 35,070 51,548
Analysis of Revenue Analysis of Profit Attributable
A4 to Owners of the Company
HK$'000 AAREE ABLEF DM
FET HK$'000

TIETT

TLETTL

A7

70,843 79,935 111,494 130,068 22,062 23,538 26,229 35,402
:;T%(isii :;ﬂgi :%gg%i :%%Ojg\’ :%étﬂéi :;T%(ﬂﬁﬂi :%golis‘ifﬁ :é(ﬂii
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

After the announcement of the 2015 Paris Climate
Conference, energy saving products and services
market has been one of the focus industries.
Synergy Group, being an early entrant in provision
of energy saving solutions, is well-positioned to
further enhance both our local and global presence.

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Synergy
Group Holdings International Limited (the “Company”), | am
pleased to report to our valued shareholders and investors
the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31
March 2016.

After the announcement of the 2015 Paris Climate
Conference, there has been an increase in the awareness
of environmental protection and demand for energy saving
products, especially in some Asian developing countries.
Recently, energy saving products and services market has
been one of the focus industries, mainly because of the
growing concern of the public on environmental protection
due to severer climate change and higher operating

costs suffered by most corporations due to the expected
increasing electricity prices.

We are one of the leading energy management contract
providers for lighting projects in Hong Kong, with full range
capabilities on providing a broad range of energy saving
services for lighting solutions, product customisation,
on-site inspection and measurement, project deployment
and after-sales services.

AAERKREREEZEBEBRARAR ([F
[E ) EFEE ([EEE ) MARNSEEN
BREBEEREANRBREMBAR (5fH
[A&EE]) HE—T—R"F_A=+—HIY
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BFTINGE - MYTERBEEMMIFEKINE T L

Tt RERRETRMOBERTEK -

- EIREEmMREMISK SEST —EEE
7% W ZHRR/RBINE S RER
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group recorded a HEZ—RFZA=1+—HIFE K&
total revenue of HK$130.1 million, representing an increase BB BKRAI01EEST  BREE S —
of 16.7% as compared to HK$111.5 million for the year AF=ZHA=1T—HILFEMNI11.588 BT
ended 31 March 2015. For the year ended 31 March 2016, h16.7% - HE-_FT—R"F=—H=+—HL
profit attributable to the owners of the Company amounted FE - AREHEBAELRFEISIESH
to HK$35.4 million, representing an increase of 35.0% as T REBE_T-—AF=-A=-F+—HIEFE
compared to the corresponding amount of HK$26.2 million B2 RE26.28 BAETIEIN35.0% ©

for the year ended 31 March 2015.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group has been BE_ZT—R"E-A=+—HLFE  &x&
successful in expanding its leasing business; and it has also ERETEEEREY - TIEEHEEEBE
expanded its leasing business into the Indonesian market. FZHETS - Bt - BAIWEERE D H
As a result, revenue generated from our leasing service EENRABREE-_E—RAF=_A=+—H
segment increased by 142.1% from HK$8.8 million for the IFFEM88EEBITILNMI42 1% EHEZ
year ended 31 March 2015 to HK$21.4 million for the year E-RNF-A=T—BHULEFEMN214EES
ended 31 March 2016, while both of our trading segment JC - MEPINE 59 5 L FARE D 5095
and consultancy service segment had a steady growth. FEIK o

Benefiting from the increasing awareness of energy REBERIREE BRI RN EREMES
saving products and services globally, the Group, being HE  SHERENEHEERMREE 2 BE
an early entrant in provision of energy saving solutions, is B mE— S EERAMERRER ST EG
well-positioned to further enhance both our local and global BED -

presence.

WONG Man Fai Mansfield FE TTHBEHARHTEE

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director BENE

Hong Kong BE

31 May 2016 —E-RFREA=+—H

ZE-RF /T RFFR OEREEERERERAR



Management Discussion and Analysis

B E R R AT

Business Review

For the year ended 31 March 2016, we had a record

of success in our leasing service segment. This was
attributable to the effort we put forth in expanding into the
overseas market, in view of the increase in the awareness
of environmental protection and growing demand for energy
saving products in developing countries in order to meet the
emission reduction targets.

Revenue generated from our leasing service segment
increased by 142.1% from HK$8.8 million for the year ended
31 March 2015 to HK$21.4 million for the year ended 31
March 2016 due to the energy management contracts under
lease arrangement that were entered during the current year
were of larger contract amounts and of contributions from
businesses generated from overseas markets. Revenue
generated from our trading segment increased by 5.4%
from HK$74.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2015

to HK$78.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2016 due
to the increase in sales of LED products, while revenue
generated from our Consultancy Services (as herein after
defined) segment for the year ended 31 March 2016
increased by 7.1% to HK$29.8 million from HK$27.8 million
for the year ended 31 March 2015 due to the increase in
resources we placed in such segment such as additional
staff employed.

Details of segment information are set out in Note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Key Financial Ratios

Gross profit (HK$’000) EF (FET)
Net profit (HK$'000) SRR (FBT)
Gross profit margin EF=

Net profit margin el

3 3C1)

HE-_Z-RF=A=+—HILFE - &M
R E AR D #BEIS AT © 1t T5 B R E AP
ENBRFERSEIRFREF - RREH
N 3 08 N B B BEEE AR MY AR SN BB N - L

NIEFABINTIGFTEL

BERMNEERB S HBEENBABEE
T-RAF=A=+— Eﬁi&%&8§%én
BEINM42 1% 282" —~F=-A=+—H
IEFEM214B 88T TERAFELL
AHESERANHEZH THRREESL
ﬁ%ﬁ%%%#ﬁmaﬁ%ﬁ ER4llE]

GOMEENRARBEE T —AF=A
:+ BIEFEMN7498 BB LIEING.4% 2
HE T NF=ZA=+—HILFEMHNT78.9
BEBIT JYRALEDE RS SR - m
BRMNBARE (FERTX) 2BEER
WABREE - TE—AF=A=+—HIF
ER27 8ABBITIEINTAREEE_T—<
FZA=1T—HIEFEN22098BESET I
ARBEMEREZERREEDE - flniE
HEASNE TRTEL »

D RVE R B ENAR A M R 6 o
FTEPKLER

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2016 2015
e
69,213 63,839
35,402 26,229
53.2% 57.3%
27.2% 23.5%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB W R DM

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

—  Our consultancy services (the “Consultancy
Services”), which are provided by the Group to third
parties in assisting them in providing energy saving
services in their markets, provided to our customers
were project-based and demand for our Consultancy
Services may fluctuate.

- We rely on our sub-contractors for providing services
of deployment and installation of lighting products to
customers.

—  We rely on our key management to conduct the
Group’s business and the inability to retain or attract
senior management personnel will adversely affect our
performance.

—  There may be changes in consumer preferences and
habits in green technologies.

Financial Review

Total revenue was HK$130.1 million for the year ended 31
March 2016, representing a 16.7% increase as compared
to that for the year ended 31 March 2015. There has

been an increasing demand for the Group’s energy saving
products and services. Gross profit margin decreased from
57.3% for the year ended 31 March 2015 to 53.2% for the
year ended 31 March 2016. Such decrease was mainly
due to an increase in revenue generated from the leasing
service segment of which the leasing services in our newly
developed overseas market had a relatively lower gross
profit margin than other markets.

Other income and gains, which mainly consisted of a
monthly service fee of HK$150,000 received from an
associate of our Group, increased from HK$1.9 million for
the year ended 31 March 2015 to HK$2.2 million for the
year ended 31 March 2016 mainly due to the reversal of
warranty provision upon expiry.

Selling and Distribution Costs

The Group’s selling and distribution costs for the year
ended 31 March 2016 were HK$4.6 million, representing
an increase of 66.2% from HK$2.8 million for the year
ended 31 March 2015. The increase was mainly due to the
increase in salaries and the increase in marketing activities

such as participation in Eco Expo Asia 2015 and sponsoring

a luncheon in relation to sustainable energy future that was
held by World Green Organisation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERENWR DM

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year ended 31
March 2016 were HK$15.6 million, representing a decrease
of 29.8% from HK$22.2 million for the year ended 31 March
2015. The decrease was mainly due to the net effect of the
decrease in listing related professional expenses and the
increase in salaries (including directors’ remuneration) and
overseas travelling expenses as a result of the expansion of
our Group’s business.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs increased from approximately
HK$13,000 for the year ended 31 March 2015 to
approximately HK$421,000 for the year ended 31 March
2016. The increase was due to the interest expenses arising
from the new bank borrowings drawn down of HK$25.3
million during the year.

Other Expenses

The Group’s other expenses increased to HK$1.5 million for
the year ended 31 March 2016 from HK$1.1 million for the
year ended 31 March 2015. Such expenses were mainly
derived from the disposal of property, plant and equipment
during the year.

Income Tax Expense

The Group’s income tax expense for the year ended 31
March 2016 was HK$9.2 million, representing a decrease
of 6.3% from HK$9.8 million for the year ended 31 March
2015. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in
deferred tax.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, our profit attributable to the
owners of the Company increased by 35.0% from HK$26.2
million for the year ended 31 March 2015 to HK$35.4
million for the year ended 31 March 2016. Excluding the
non-recurring listing-related expenses, our profit for the
year ended 31 March 2016 recorded as HK$35.4 million,
representing a 15.4% decrease as compared to HK$41.9
million for the year ended 31 March 2015.

ITHRAIX

HE-Z—R"F=A=1+—RHAILEE K&
ENTHRASA15.6688T BHE-Z
—RF=ZRA=+—HLFEMN228BEE T
FL29.8% R EBHMNE T EBNE
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[R 7K 62 [ ZE TSR R T 08 90 2 BR B S8 N ey
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& R AR
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+—HIEFEHL13,0008 TENEEFHE —
T—ARFZA=Z+—HIFERNL421,000
PETT o FZIEIME B RN FARIREGTIRITIE
25 3E BB ILEENF BRI -

Hpax

AEENHEMRAYHBEE—"T - AF=A=
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TTEABB.0%EHEZE-T—"F=A=+—H
IEFEMS5.48 8870 o kR IELEE LT
HEER #HEz—FT—"F=ZA=+—HI1
FEHFSSAEEETNET  BREE-T
—RAF=ZA=+t—HLFENMNIBEET
TB15.4% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

The following table reconciles our net profit (before
deducting listing-related expenses) for the years presented
to the audited profit for the years indicated:

Profit for the year F W F

Add: o

Listing-related expenses LTEEER

Net profit for the year (before F A58 A
deducting listing-related ($0BR ETHERE &
expenses) (note) (B3%)

Note: The decrease was mainly due to the increase in post-listing expenses
of more than HK$2.4 million and the increase in administrative
expenses such as travelling expenses as a result of further expansion
of the Group’s business. Potential investors should be aware that
this net profit for the year (before deducting listing-related expenses)
presented in this report may not be comparable to similar titled
measures reported by other companies due to differences in the
components of the calculations.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM on 24
March 2015 (the “Listing”).

The Group mainly finances its business with internally
generated cash flows, bank borrowings and proceeds
from the Listing. As at 31 March 2016, currents assets of
the Group amounted to HK$148.4 million, representing an
increase of 46.0% from HK$101.7 million as at 31 March
2015. Current assets mainly comprised cash and bank
balances (including pledged bank deposits) of HK$29.1
million (2015: HK$27.7 million) and trade receivables of
HK$84.9 million (2015: HK$58.6 million).

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s current liabilities mainly
comprised borrowings of HK$25.3 million (2015: HK$0.1
million), trade payables of HK$16.3 million (2015: HK$6.4
million) and accruals, other payables and deposits received
of HK$7.3 million (2015: HK$6.8 million).

Sz
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TREFRPIN2FFERFEF K £
EREMA) BARFERELERGE MR

Year ended 31 March

BE=ZA=+—HLEE

2016 2015 Change
e —TF L)
HK$’000 HK$'000 %

FHET FET
35,402 26,229 35.0
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35,402 41,858 -15.4
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERENWR DM

The Group’s current ratio decreased from 4.9 times as at 31
March 2015 to 2.6 times as at 31 March 2016. The Group
has sufficient working capital to meet the current liquidity
demand within at least 12 months from the date of this
report.

The total outstanding borrowings of the Group as at

31 March 2016 was HK$25.5 million (31 March 2015:
approximately HK$449,000) due to banks and an
independent third party. The increase was due to the new
bank borrowings of HK$25.3 million that was drawn during
the year.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s equity attributable to the
owners of the Company was HK$132.2 million, representing
an increase of 36.5% from HK$96.9 million as at 31 March

2015.

As at 31 March 2016, a time deposit of HK$2.5 million was
pledged as a security for the bank facilities (31 March 2015:
Nil). Save as disclosed above, the Group has no other
charges on its assets as at 31 March 2016.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31
March 2016.

Associated Company

Synergy Cooling Management Limited (“SCML”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Cooling Group”) is
an associated company of the Group which was owned
as to approximately 27.17% (subsequently increased

to approximately 36.59% and details are set out in the
paragraph below) by the Group. SCML wholly owns Synergy
Cooling Management (H.K.) Limited (“SCML (HK)”) and
indirectly wholly owns Synergy ESCO (Malaysia) Sdn.
Bhd. (“SE (Malay)”). Both SCML (HK) and SE (Malay)
are principally engaged in the business of energy saving
management.
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Synergy Cooling Management Limited
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4% 2 & # 8 Synergy ESCO (Malaysia) Sdn.
Bhd. ([ SE (Malay) ) ° SCML (HK) % SE
(Malay) 9 E Z{R EeEEET -
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On 6 October 2015 (after trading hours), Synergy Group
Worldwide Limited (“Synergy Worldwide”) as a purchaser
entered into the sale and purchase agreement with Fuqi
Holdings Limited as a vendor pursuant to which Fuqi
Holdings Limited agreed to sell, and Synergy Worldwide
agreed to acquire, approximately 9.42% interest in SCML
at a consideration of HK$19.5 million. The acquisition

was completed on 8 October 2015 and upon completion,
Synergy Worldwide has become interested in approximately
36.59% in SCML. Details of the acquisition are set out in
the announcements of the Company dated 6 October 2015
and 14 October 2015.

The turnover of the Cooling Group for the year ended 31
March 2016 was HK$9.6 million, representing an increase
of 58.7% from HK$6.1 million for the year ended 31 March
2015. It was mainly attributable to the incorporation of SE
(Malay) during the year ended 31 March 2015 in accordance
with Cooling Group’s expansion strategy. The net loss
attributable to the shareholders of the Cooling Group for
the year ended 31 March 2016 was HK$13.3 million which
remained stable as compared to HK$13.3 million for the
year ended 31 March 2015.

During the year, the Group made advances of HK$5.2 million
to the Cooling Group at interest rate of 5% per annum.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant
investments held, material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies, and other plans for
material investments or capital assets during the year ended
31 March 2016.

Guarantees

During the year, a Hong Kong subsidiary of the Group

has committed to provide corporate guarantees to

two independent third parties in Malaysia in respect of
equipment lease agreements entered into between the
independent third parties and an associate of the Group.
The duration of the agreements were ranging from 48
months to 59 months, with average monthly rent charged to
the associate of approximately RM23,000 each (equivalent
to approximately HK$46,000 each).

Save as disclosed above, we did not have any material
guarantees as at 31 March 2016.
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Employees and Remuneration Policies

As of 31 March 2016, the Group had 27 full-time employees.
The Group offers a competitive remuneration package
commensurate with industry practice and provides benefits
to its employees, including bonuses, medical coverage and
provident fund contributions.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) Scheme. Under
the MPF Scheme, each of the Group companies (the
employer) and its employees make monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Legislation. The
contributions from each of the employers and employees
are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month and thereafter
contributions are voluntary.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to its Directors and eligible employees of the
Group, details of which are set out in the paragraph headed
“Share Option Scheme” below.

Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
adopted by the Company was approved by its shareholder
on 5 March 2015. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
the Share Option Scheme will remain in force for 10 years
from 5 March 2015. Under the Share Option Scheme, the
Directors may in its absolute discretion offer to grant to any
qualified participant an option to subscribe for the number
of shares at an exercise price determined by the Board,
being at least the highest of (i) the closing price of shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the date of the offer of grant; (ii) the
average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of the
offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company. The offer of a grant of options may be accepted
within 20 business days from the date of the offer. HK$1.00
is payable by any qualified participant to our Company

on acceptance of the option offer as consideration for

the grant. Qualified participants include any Director or
employee (whether full time or part time) of our Company
and its subsidiaries and associated companies (as defined
under the Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622 of the laws of
Hong Kong).
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The options granted may be exercised in whole or in part
by the grantees. The exercise period of the options granted
shall be a period of time to be notified by the Directors

to the grantees, which the Directors may in its absolute
discretion determine, save that such period shall not be
more than 10 years commencing on the date of the offer of
grant.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise

of the options which may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of our
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the shares of the Company then in issue. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to the
Company’s shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under this Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not

in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares

in issue as at the date which the Company’s shares first
commence trading on GEM, being 50,000,000 shares.

No share options were granted under the Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2016. As at 31
March 2016, there were no outstanding options granted
under the Share Option Scheme. Share options do not
confer rights to the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

Capital Structure

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange on 24 March 2015. The Group mainly
finances its business with internally generated cash flows,
bank borrowings and proceeds from the Listing. The Group
has bank borrowings of HK$25.2 million as at 31 March
2016 (31 March 2015: Nil).
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Foreign Currency Exposure

Our Group’s revenue and expenses are mainly in Hong Kong
dollar which is the functional currency of all entities making
up the Group. Our Group is mainly exposed to the foreign
currency risk of Renminbi, US dollar, Malaysian Ringgit and
Indonesian Rupiah. As Hong Kong dollar is pegged to US
dollar, we do not expect any significant movement in the US
dollar/Hong Kong dollar exchange rate. For the sensitivity
analysis of the Group’s results for the year in regards to a
5% appreciation in Hong Kong dollar against the relevant
foreign currencies, details are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report.

The Group currently does not have hedging policy against
foreign exchange risk. The management will consider
hedging significant currency exposure in future should the
need arises.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 March 2016, the gearing ratio of the Group was
19.3% (31 March 2015: 0.5%), which is calculated on

the basis of the amount of total debts divided by the total
equity. Such increase was due to the new bank borrowings
that were drawn down during the year.

Dividend

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2016.

The Company is not aware of any arrangement under which
a shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

SN B
AEBNRANFEXTEZNETFE BT
RAKRAEENAAEERNINGEER - A%
EEX2EHARE  XT - BRARSE
eSS R o BT T -
ﬁTFﬁinﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁi’éﬁEﬁEWETEHEK

if%ﬁz;&(”zf‘ *ﬁ 15 ?ﬁﬁ/\$¢$&,n
BB MARMEEIS - AEE B HILEEAY
HINERBBEEE - BEEEENBRERS
ERZRIUPEREERR

EARB B E
R-B—AFEZA=+—8  AREHEL
& R19.8% (CE—RF=A=+—
B 0.5%) LTy RIAE HE R A @IS

EREFFEEE o ZIGMNTIHENFEREICHTR
1 W\Fﬁﬁ

iz 2

EEeTTEBERNBE-_T—R"E=A=
TR IEFERERBRE -

ARBWAREIBIRREREXRBRES
B B 2B o

Synergy Group Holdings International Limited ~ Annual Report 2015/2016



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

Comparison of Business Objectives with  ¥£75 B 1ZE B EFKIER 2 LB
Actual Business Progress

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out AARIBHAZZ—RAF=-A+=—B 28K

in the Company’s prospectus (the “Prospectus”) dated ER((BRER) K ZHEEE—
13 March 2015 with actual business progress for the year T RNFZAZ+—HILFEZERERE

ended 31 March 2016 is as follows: BZHERITOT :

Business objectives for the period
from 24 March 2015 (Listing Date) to Actual business progress for the period
year ended 31 March 2016 as stated from 24 March 2015 (Listing Date) to

in the Prospectus year ended 31 March 2016
ERERABEE_T-—AF=A=-THME —FT-—AF=A-+WA (LHHEH =
(EWHEE) 2822 —X~F=A HE—_ZT—R"F=-A=+—HLLFEHH
=t—HIEFESBzEBKBR ZEREGER
Further expand in —  Expand sales and marketing team -  Our Group employed additional staff
international markets for international markets for international markets during the
through customisation —  Identify and establish overseas period
of our lighting distributorship for international —  Our Group conducted several
products and markets visits to overseas like Malaysia
appointment of —  Conduct visits to existing overseas and Indonesia for exploring new
distributors distributors for sales and marketing potential cooperation and business
opportunities
FRRAERTEICK — BREEREMSIHE KL HERK —  AEERHAARREE TS EB RN
ZEDHEEE—F — PERENERTISHNEIND HE BT
T BB 35 8 o GER —  AREBETEUREINMRE (HIAFE K
— EDHEREHENR AN HE AR REE) - ABEEINEEAE
PEIT- T
Continue to expand —  Expand project management team -  Our Group employed additional
in the PRC markets to assist Consultancy Services staff to assist Consultancy Services
through offering our customers customers and further develop the
Consultancy Services - Identify and work with potential customer relationship
or entering into Consultancy Services customers
strategic partnerships
EEFEBIRHERM — ERBEEEBEBAMBHARE — AEEBRIEIEI - LARBER
AR T SR ST ARSI B RIS =P M — T ERT P BIE
SEBHBEAREFE — YeRREBEEFZARBES,AE
M5 R
Continue to expand —  Expand sales and marketing team -  Our Group expanded the sales and
our energy saving for Hong Kong office marketing team for Hong Kong
solutions business in -  Expand project management team office during the period
Hong Kong — ldentify potential strategic partners
and establish partnership
BETEEBBEREMN — BEATERAEZNHEREHEK — XEERNBRBAEENAZMNIHE
B RERRIR T R TS - BEAREREEEMK Ko tH B X
- YEBEERBMEERHREVAE
PR
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Business objectives for the period
from 24 March 2015 (Listing Date) to Actual business progress for the period
year ended 31 March 2016 as stated from 24 March 2015 (Listing Date) to

in the Prospectus
BREERAFE T —RAF=A=1+WA
(LA Z28E_Z—R=H
=T—HIEFERRZEBER

year ended 31 March 2016
ZE-RAF=A=+WMWA (LWEH) =
BE-_ZT - "F=ZA=1+—HILFEHH
ZEREBHER

Enhance our research
and development
capabilities

HEoR AP BE 1

Engage in marketing
activities to enhance
our brand image and
recognition

ETEHEBIARS
AR @R R &
HMEE

Continue to enhance existing
lighting products

Continue to source lighting products
to diversify lighting solution

Expand our research and
development team

Acquire additional lighting testing
equipment for research and
development

Register new patent if applicable

BENRRERAER
EERBRAERABRRARRT
ESEDIvid

EAHEBE K

AT BRI BN BB B B
AEMETER (2ER)

Participate in Hong Kong lighting
and energy saving related exhibition
including Hong Kong International
Lighting Fair (2015 Spring Edition
and 2015 Autumn Edition)
Participate in international lighting
and energy saving related exhibition
including the lighting fairs in Japan
and Frankfurt

SMEBRAREGEEBERE - B
—E-hFERBEREFEHREL
- FHFEEBRENRETEMR
SMERRAKESEAERS - 25
B R 0 B8 5o 4 HY K B

—  Our Group expanded our research
and development team during the
period

—  Our Group was developing a series
of LED lighting with higher lumen
per watt, lesser lumen depreciation
and longer life time

—  Our Group acquired additional
lighting testing equipment for
research and development during
the period

—  AEBERBAREAHEREK

- AEERE-FRIABER
BERHA - RIERABRRELSS
B RAILEDIRAAE M@

- AEERHARKEEINRIDRH R
o UHIRERS

—  Our Group participated in the
exhibition of Eco Expo Asia 2015
that was held from 28 to 31 October
2015 in Hong Kong

—  Our Group sponsored a luncheon
in relation to sustainable energy
future that was held by World Green
Organisation on 11 November 2015

—  Our Group made several newspaper
advertisements during the period

- AEEZER_Z-AF+AZTN
HE=+—HAREBRTHN_ZT—H
FRERRREE

- FEREEPHEAGEABN T —
RFE+—A+—BRITE@ENSER
BARKRNFE

— FREERBREXRTIERAES
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Use of Proceeds

The net proceeds from the Listing, after deducting the
underwriting commission and other expenses in connection
with the Listing, amounted to approximately HK$7.1 million.
An analysis comparing the breakdown of the intended use
of such net proceeds from the Listing in proportion to that
as set out in the Prospectus with actual usage for the year
ended 31 March 2016 is as follows:

Expansion of our Group’s business A& 7~ £2 B FA Bl B T 45
in international markets oS

Expansion of our Group’s business /& 7~ & F A
in the PRC SOES

Expansion of our Group’s business AR AEBRES
in Hong Kong EEi

Marketing activities to enhance our #1724 855 B LATRTH G k8

brand image and recognition WESEED
Enhance our research and hnagHf EE8E H
development capabilities
Total 5t

Future Outlook

The Group is optimistic towards the energy saving business
because of the severe contamination of the environment.
After the announcement of the 2015 Paris Climate
Conference, there has been an increase in the awareness
of environmental protection and demand for energy saving
products, especially in some Asian developing countries.

The Group continues to take proactive business strategies,
such as further expanding in the domestic and global
markets through customisation of our lighting products,
appointment of distributors and entering into strategic
partnerships; enhancing our research and development
capabilities; and engaging in marketing activities to enhance
our brand image and recognition. We will put more focus
on international market, especially the emerging markets, in
view of the growing demand for energy saving products in
order to meet the emission reduction targets.

FRi§FIEFZ

ETIRRAERIEEE (KOG eHEAe kL™
MERENEMAXR) OR7T1REET - K
SR —E LM% E LSRR FRE
REMAGRALBE_T - "F-_A=1+—
BIEEENERAEOLEITNT

Use of proceeds
for the year ended

31 March 2016 in
proportion to that
as stated in the

Actual use of
proceeds for the
year ended

Prospectus 31 March 2016
BRI EZ IR

BE-T—AF BE-T-AF

=A=+—H —A=+—H

IEFE—FE IEFER

MFSRIERE FIEREETRAR

HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BEATL

0.8 0.9

0.3 0.3

0.6 0.6

0.6 0.6

0.4 0.4

2.7 2.8
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Our Business

A B

O
aln

Overseas
Customers

BINEF

Philippines « Sweden ¢ Indonesia
Brunei « Cambodia * Portugal

Overseas Mexico * Nicaragua « Malaysia
. Soloman Island * Poland -« Fiji
L] - *
Distributorship Guinea
N yaNy’->4 * FERE - IWnf - HE
BHND HE X - RBE - WEF
RBEF - EMEMN « SEREER
Australia and New Zealand FraEfpte « Wi « 5
Denmark ¢ Fiji = Japan 4y an
Singapore ¢« Sri Lanka

Thailand
BN Ko 3 78 B
FHEE . EE - BAE
g - MERER
Z &

*As at the date of this report
RARHE B H
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Partnership

BrEH @3

Worldwide Patents*

2IRER *

Australia « Canada « Hong Kong
India * Indonesia
New Zealand ¢ Philippines
Russian Federation
Singapore * South Africa
South Korea ¢« USA ¢ Vietnam
BN e mEX - BE
g - BE
EE - ERE
fik Z& By B
ook - B3k
P c XB - HE

ZE-RF /ST REFER OEREEERERERAR
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management

==
B
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Man Fai Mansfield, aged 42, is our Chief
Executive Officer, Chairman of the Board and an Executive
Director. He is also a director of Synergy Lighting

Limited and Synergy Group Worldwide Limited, both

are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, and

was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of Synergy
Lighting Limited on 1 July 2009. He was appointed as a
Director of our Company on 30 December 2011. He is
primarily responsible for the overall corporate strategies,
development management and operation of our Group. Mr.
Wong graduated from the University of Arizona, Arizona,
United States with a Bachelor’s degree in Electrical
Engineering in May 1996. He also obtained a Master

of Engineering (Electrical) from Cornell University, New
York, United States in May 1997. He has over 11 years

of management experience. Mr. Wong is the sole director
and sole shareholder of Mpplication Group Limited, which
provides information technology management services

to our Group. Mr. Wong is the sole director and sole
shareholder of Abundance Development Limited and one of
our substantial shareholders. As at the date of this Annual
Report, Abundance Development Limited holds 47,249,204
shares in the Company, representing approximately 9.45%
of the issued shares of the Company.

Mr. Lam Arthur, aged 31, is the Vice Chairman of the
Board, an Executive Director and one of our substantial
shareholders. He was appointed as a Director and Vice
Chairman of our Company on 30 December 2011 and 3
February 2016 respectively, and is responsible for overseas
development and research and development of our Group.
Mr. Lam is also a director of Synergy Lighting Limited and
Synergy Group Worldwide Limited, both are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lam graduated from the
University of Notre Dame, Indiana, United States, with a
Bachelor’s degree in Mechanical Engineering in May 2008.
Before joining our Group, Mr. Lam was an Associate (Trade
Support and Risk Management) in Myo Capital Advisers
Limited from November 2008 to June 2009. Mr. Lam is a
certified Carbon Audit Professional and a certified Energy
Manager of The Association of Energy Engineers (Hong
Kong Chapter). Mr. Lam is the cousin of Mr. Lam Chung Ho
Alastair, the Non-executive Director of the Company. As at
the date of this Annual Report, Mr. Lam holds 35,464,437
shares in the Company, representing approximately 7.09%
of the issued shares of the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lam Chung Ho Alastair, aged 38, is a Non-executive
Director and one of our substantial shareholders. He

was the founder of our Group and was appointed as a
Director of our Company on 14 December 2011. Mr. Lam
does not have a management role and is not involved

in the day-to-day management of our Group, but he is
responsible for formulating our Group’s overall corporate
strategies and management directions. Mr. Lam is also a
director of Synergy Lighting Limited and Synergy Group
Worldwide Limited, both are wholly-owned subsidiaries

of the Company. Mr. Lam graduated from the University

of Wisconsin-Madison, Wisconsin, United States with a
Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration in August
2001. From 2001 to 2006, Mr. Lam was the accounting
executive in Qualipak Manufacturing Limited, a then
wholly-owned subsidiary of Qualipak International Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Since 1 January 2012, Mr. Lam has been appointed as

a member of the Wuhan City Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference* (B AR
Boam A EmE EmZ ). He has been awarded the
“Entrepreneur of Tomorrow” by EFG Bank and CAPITAL
Entrepreneur Magazine in 2010; and the “CAPITAL Leaders

of Excellence Awards 2011” by CAPITAL Magazine in 2011.

Mr. Lam is the cousin of Mr. Arthur Lam, the Executive
Director of the Company.

As at the date of this Annual Report, Mr. Lam holds
49,800,734 shares in the Company, representing
approximately 9.96% of the issued shares of the Company.

* for identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chung Koon Yan, aged 52, is an Independent
Non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, member of the Remuneration Committee and
member of the Nomination Committee of the Company
since 5 March 2015. He is a practicing and fellow member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a fellow member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Master’s
Degree in Professional Accounting in November 2000. Mr.
Chung obtained the fellow membership of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in October 2003 and
became a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in October 1998, and was also admitted
as an associate of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales in October 2004. Mr. Chung is a director
of Chiu, Choy & Chung CPA Ltd. and has more than 20
years’ experience in accounting, auditing and taxation. Mr.
Chung has been an independent non-executive director of
Great World Company Holdings Limited (stock code: 8003),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since May 2008
and an independent non-executive director of Asian Citrus
Holdings Limited, a company listed on both the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 73) and the AIM of the London
Stock Exchange (stock code: ACHL), since November 2013.
He was an independent non-executive director of China
Financial Leasing Group Limited (stock code: 2312) from
September 2004 to January 2013, Well Way Group Limited
(now known as “Global Mastermind Holdings Limited”)
(stock code: 8063) from January 2006 to April 2014 and
Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd. (stock code: 106) from
June 2009 to July 2013, all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.
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Mr. Cheung Yick Hung Jackie, aged 48, is an
Independent Non-executive Director, the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, member of the Audit Committee
and member of the Nomination Committee of the Company
since 5 March 2015. Mr. Cheung has been a representative
of KGI Asia Limited and KGI Futures (Hong Kong) Limited
which carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 2
(dealing in futures contracts) regulated activities under the
SFO respectively since 29 March 2011. Mr. Cheung was
admitted as a solicitor to the High Court of Hong Kong in
November 1995 and as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of
England and Wales in May 1997. He graduated from City
Polytechnic of Hong Kong (now known as City University
of Hong Kong) with a degree of Bachelor of Laws and
obtained the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws in November
1992 and November 1993 respectively. Mr. Cheung served
as a District Councillor of the Central and Western District
Council for the period from 1 January 2012 to 31 December
2015.

Dr. Wong Chi Ying Anthony, aged 60, is an Independent
Non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee, member of the Audit Committee and member of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company since 5 March
2015. He is currently the vice chairman and an executive
director of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (stock code:
1047), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, in charge
of its research and development centre and responsible

for its business development. Dr. Wong was an Associate
Professor in the Department of Industrial and Manufacturing
Systems Engineering of The University of Hong Kong from
1997 to 2006. He obtained a B. Tech (Hons) degree and a
Ph. D degree in Chemical Engineering from The University
of Bradford U.K. in December 1980 and in December

1983 respectively. Dr. Wong became a Corporate Member
of The Institution of Chemical Engineers (MIChemE) and
Chartered Engineer (C.Eng) of the Engineering Council, UK,
in November 1999 and December 1999 respectively. On 1
June 2004, he obtained a status as a Chartered Scientist
(CSci) from The Institution of Chemical Engineers and The
Science Council, UK. He was also admitted as a member of
The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers on 16 March 2000.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheng Chi Kuen, aged 42, is our Chief Operation
Officer since June 2011. He is responsible for overseeing
our business operations, sales and marketing, office
administration and human resources management. He

has over 6 years of management experience. He was the
cofounder and a director of Synergy Green Technology
Limited. Synergy Green Technology Limited is one of the
shareholders of Synergy Cooling Management Limited,
which holds 40.2% interest of the entire issued share
capital of Synergy Cooling Management Limited. Mr. Cheng
was previously employed by Zymmetry Limited (formerly
known as Mission System Consultant Limited), a global
sourcing and manufacturing solutions provider for the
apparel industry. During his time at Zymmetry Limited, Mr.
Cheng had held various positions and subsequently as
senior marketing manager of Asia Pacific region at the time
when he left Zymmetry Limited. He has obtained a Master’s
degree in Business Administration through a distance
learning course offered by the University of Bradford U.K. in
July 2013.

Mr. Tong Man Chun, aged 42, is our Chief Financial Officer
since December 2011 and was appointed as our Company
Secretary on 16 December 2014. He is responsible for our
Group’s financial planning and management, and corporate
governance. He is a Certified Public Accountant in Australia
and member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Tong graduated from the University of
South Australia, Australia with a Bachelor’s Degree in
Accounting in March 1997. Mr. Tong was admitted as a
Certified Public Accountant in Australia in October 2001
and was admitted as a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in September 2005. Prior
to joining our Group, he has over 16 years’ experience in
accounting taxation, financial reporting and consultancy
management and had worked in various corporate

services companies and certified public accountants firms
in Hong Kong and held various positions such as senior
management consultant.
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance
report as set out in the Company’s Annual Report for the
year ended 31 March 2016.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to achieving and maintaining high
standards of corporate governance. The Board believes
that good corporate governance standards are essential
in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and to enhance corporate value,
transparency and accountability, and to formulate its
business strategies and policies.

The Company has adopted the principles and code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Corporate Governance Code”) contained in Appendix 15
to the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company has adopted revised Terms of Reference of
the Audit Committee on 3 February 2016 in compliance
with and to address the new provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code dealing with risk management and
internal control systems and effective for the accounting
period beginning on 1 January 2016.

The Board is of the view that, throughout the year ended

31 March 2016, the Company has complied, to the extent
applicable and permissible, with the code provisions set out
in the Corporate Governance Code, except for the deviation
from code provision A.2.1 as explained under the paragraph
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” below.

Compliance with the Required Standard
of Dealings and Securities Dealing Code

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct for
dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors and
the relevant employees of the Group who are likely to be
in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company (the “Securities Dealing Code”). The Securities
Dealing Code is no less exacting than the standard as

set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules

for transactions in securities by the directors of the listed
issuers (the “Required Standard of Dealings”). Having
made specific enquiries with all Directors and relevant
employees, all Directors and relevant employees have
confirmed that they have complied with the Securities
Dealing Code and therefore, complied with the Required
Standard of Dealings throughout the year ended 31 March
2016 and up to the date of this Annual Report.
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Board Composition

The Board currently consists of six Directors, comprising
two Executive Directors, one Non-executive Director and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, who together,
bring the skills and experience the Company needs to meet
our long-term objectives. The Directors of the Company

during the year and as at the date of this Annual Report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. WONG Man Fai Mansfield
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LAM Arthur (Vice Chairman)*

Non-executive Director:

Mr. LAM Chung Ho Alastair

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHUNG Koon Yan
Mr. CHEUNG Yick Hung Jackie
Dr. WONG Chi Ying Anthony

* Mr. LAM Arthur was appointed as the Vice Chairman of the Board
with effect from 3 February 2016. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 3 February 2016.

Mr. LAM Arthur is the cousin of Mr. LAM Chung Ho Alastair.
Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of the Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 22 to 26 of this Annual
Report, the relationships (including financial, business,
family, or other material/relevant relationship(s)) between the
members of the Board are also disclosed under the said
section.

Responsibilities of and Delegation by
the Board

The Board is primarily responsible for leadership and control
of the Company and oversees the Group’s businesses,
overall strategic decisions and performance, approving the
financial statements and annual budgets, and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company

by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board ensures
that it is managed in the best interests of the shareholders
as a whole while taking into account the interest of other
stakeholders.
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Our Company’s day-to-day management and operational
decisions are made by the Group’s Executive Directors and
senior management, who are experienced in managing

the Group’s business. Mr. Alastair LAM, our Non-executive
Director, does not participate in the daily management of our
Group, but contributes to the overall corporate strategies
and management directions of our Group. The three
Independent Non-executive Directors bring independent
judgment to the decision-making process of the Board.

All Directors, including Non-executive Director and
Independent Non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information
of the Company as well as the services and advice from the
Company Secretary and senior management. The Directors
may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.

The Board is also responsible for the corporate governance
functions under code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code. The Board has reviewed and discussed
the corporate governance policy of the Group and is
satisfied with the effectiveness of the corporate governance

policy.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of
other offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews
the contribution required from each Director to perform his
responsibilities to the Company.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code
states that the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Mr. WONG Man Fai Mansfield is the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. WONG
has been leading our Group as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and one of our subsidiaries since 2009,
thus, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of
the Group to continue to have Mr. Mansfield WONG stay
as the Chief Executive Officer and leader of the Board

for effective management of our Group. The balance of
power and authority is ensured by the operation of the
senior management and the Board, which is comprised

of experienced and high-calibre individuals. The Board
currently comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors and has a fairly strong independence element in
its composition. Therefore, the Board considers that the
deviation from code provision A.2.1 is appropriate in the
circumstances. The Board will review the management
structure regularly and consider separating the roles of
chairman and chief executive, if and when appropriate.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2016 and up to
the date of this Annual Report, the Board at all times
complied with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the
GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors, representing
at least one-third of the Board, with at least one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received the written confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors in
respect of their independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in
the GEM Listing Rules.
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Terms of Appointment and Re-Election
of Directors

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a

service agreement with the Company for a fixed term
commencement from 24 March 2015 (the “Listing Date”)
until and including the date of the third annual general
meeting following the Listing Date and will continue
thereafter until terminated by at least three months’ written
notice or payment in lieu to the other party. Each of the
Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company with a term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date.

According to the Company’s article of association (the
“Articles of Association”), at least one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation, provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years.

Any director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of shareholders and
be subject to re-election at such general meeting, and
any director appointed as an addition to the Board will be
subject to re-election by shareholders at the first annual
general meeting after initial appointment.

Continuous Professional Development of
Directors

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a Director
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Every newly appointed director would receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his appointment to ensure appropriate understanding

of the business and operations of the Group and full
awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under
the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. All Directors
are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company’s expenses.

ESECEHREE

BHITER D BARRFLEE F R RS
W B-T-—HF=A_+tWA ([EWA
) EEELTAMRFE=ERRBFAE
B (BERER) L YHEEBTEENS
—HEHELZEANEEAMARZNRE
HE T AL - BIFMITES MBI IFATT
EECBEARABFYREE - B LMAME
REI=F -

REARAZABERAR ((ARERMHA
Al 2L=n2 HEBEFARRRBF
ReLWERTE MEREFAELIE=F
WERE—KR -

ERAEZENERERERNEST ZEDHH
EEHEZIREERRAE /L - WERN
FZRARE LEEEE - MEREZREIAE
HEFEGABNESERNERZTR ZERE
BRBFASHRREREL -

EECHBEEXRR

BEFHTR TREAERARREREZHE
FAgsT  URARBZEB BB RBER

BEHRENEFNEVEZTHDSES
I 2ERFHASEMEZOMEZN - #
REBAKENEBRLEDEEE TH
AR FMERIFER EMARRI R EAEEE S
ETEZENBEREME -

EEESEFPENFETELRR  BRER
REFRENHME N REEEHE
EZEFHANBERAEEER - ARABEAE
EXHFERBEIRE - BRAANQAHAE

o

ZE-RF /T RFFR OEREEERERERAR




Corporate Governance Report
EEERMSE

During the year ended 31 March 2016, all Directors had
participated in formal and comprehensive training sessions
provided by the Company, including but not limited to
regulatory updates relating to listed companies in Hong
Kong and preparation of Environmental, Social and
Governance report, to ensure that the Directors understand
the business and operations of the Group and their duties
and obligations.

Directors’ Attendance Record

Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the Board is scheduled to meet four
times during a financial year as a minimum and, during

the year ended 31 March 2016, it met four times. Details

of the attendance of each Director at the meetings of the
Board and its respective committees and the annual general
meeting during the year ended 31 March 2016 are as
follows:

REBE-_Z-—R"EF=A=+—BILFE &
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Attendance/No. of Meeting(s)

HE/ gEE A
Annual
Audit  Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
BEEMA EEg BEREESg FEES REEZEE® RERBFAE
Mr. WONG Man Fai
Mansfield
B EEE 4/4 —/- —/- —/- 1/1
Mr. LAM Arthur
WERESE 4/4 ~/~- ~/- —/~ 1/1
Mr. LAM Chung Ho
Alastair
MEREE 4/4 —/- ~/- —/~ 0/1
Mr. CHUNG Koon Yan
BIE A S E 4/4 4/4 1/1 1/1 1/1
Mr. CHEUNG Yick Hung
Jackie
REMSLE 4/4 4/4 1/1 1/1 1/1
Dr. WONG Chi Ying
Anthony
BEFEEL 4/4 4/4 1/1 1/1 1/1

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
one meeting with the Non-executive Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) without the presence
of Executive Directors during the year ended 31 March
2016.
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The Company generally gives written notice and draft
agenda of regular Board meetings to each Director at
least 14 days prior to the meetings. For other Board and
committees meetings, written notice is generally given
pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association and the
respective terms of reference of the Board committees.

Agendas for each meeting are prepared by the Company
Secretary in consultation with the Directors, and based

on a forward calendar that helps ensure that all relevant
matters for the year ahead are considered by the Board in
a timely manner. All Directors are encouraged to contribute
to the agenda setting process. Agendas and accompanying
papers are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting for their review and to
keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments and
financial position of the Company so as to enable them to
make informed decisions.

In addition to board papers, information relevant to the
Company’s financial position and latest developments

is made available to Directors to keep them up to date.
Structured monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
position and prospects are provided to Directors. The
Directors also have access to the Company Secretary and
senior management where necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of
all Board meetings and committees meetings. Draft minutes
are normally circulated to all Directors for comments within
a reasonable time after each meeting and the final versions
are open for Directors’ inspection.

In the event that there is a potential conflict of interest
arising out of any transaction to be entered into between
the Group and a Director or their respective associates,

the interested Director(s) shall abstain from voting at the
relevant Board meetings of the Company in respect of such
transactions and shall not be counted as a quorum of such
Board meetings.
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Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely,

the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs on its behalf, and report back to
the Board. The roles and functions of the committees are
set out in their respective terms of reference. The Terms

of Reference of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee are available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

All committees are provided with sufficient resources and
support to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstance, at the Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board was established with its
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to
5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules and code provision C.3.3 of
the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are mainly to make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditor; review the financial statements and material
advice in respect of financial reporting; and oversee financial
reporting system, and risk management and internal control
systems of our Company.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Audit Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. CHUNG Koon Yan (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. CHEUNG Yick Hung Jackie and Dr.
WONG Chi Ying Anthony, with Mr. CHUNG possessing the
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting and
related financial management expertise.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least two times per year,
or more frequently as circumstances require. The Audit
Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31
March 2016. Individual attendance records of each Audit
Committee member are set out in the table on page 32 of
this Annual Report.
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The Audit Committee’s main work during the year ended 31
March 2016 included reviewing:

e 2014/2015 Annual Report and annual results
announcement

e 2015/2016 Interim Report and interim results
announcement

e  2015/2016 First and Third Quarterly Reports as well as
the related results announcements

° in relation to the external auditors, their plans, reports
and letter of representation, fees, involvement in
non-audit services, and their terms of engagement

e the effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting
system and internal control procedures

° the revised Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee

Our annual results for the year ended 31 March 2016 were
reviewed by our Audit Committee, which was of the opinion
that the preparation of such audited consolidated annual
results of the Group complied with the applicable accounting
standards, GEM Listing Rules and legal requirements and
that adequate disclosures had been made.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the relationship
the Company has with BDO Limited, the Company’s
external auditor. The Audit Committee is satisfied with

the effectiveness of the external audit process and the
independence of BDO Limited and has recommended their
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
A resolution to this effect will be included in the notice of
annual general meeting for the year 2016.

The Audit Committee’s terms of reference were reviewed
and amended during the year to ensure they continue to
meet the needs of the Company and to ensure compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Board was established
with its written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision A.5.2 of the Corporate Governance Code.

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board, developing and formulating relevant procedures
for the nomination and appointment of directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of Directors, and assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Nomination
Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. WONG Chi Ying Anthony (Chairman of
the Nomination Committee), Mr. CHUNG Koon Yan and Mr.
CHEUNG Yick Hung Jackie.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least annually

or more or less frequently as circumstances require. The
Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2016. Individual attendance records of
each Nomination Committee member are set out in the table
on page 32 of this Annual Report.

In assessing the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board, the Nomination Committee takes into
account various aspects set out in the Board Diversity
Policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience. The Nomination Committee
agrees on measurable objectives for achieving diversity

on the Board as set out in the Board Diversity Policy,
where necessary, and recommends them to the Board for
adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitably qualified candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee shall consider the
candidates on merit and against the objective criteria, with
due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board.
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During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Nomination
Committee conducted an annual review of the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board and assessed
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
pursuant to code provision A.5.2 of the Corporate
Governance Code. The Nomination Committee considered
an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the
Board is maintained and no material matter was identified
under review.

The Nomination Committee’s terms of reference were
reviewed during the year to ensure they continue to meet
the needs of the Company and to ensure compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Board was established
with its written terms of reference in compliance with Rule
5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules and code provision B.1.2 of
the Corporate Governance Code.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are
mainly to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors
and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment, and make recommendations to the Board
of the remuneration of Non-executive and Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The emoluments of Executive Directors are determined
based on skills, knowledge, individual performance as
well as contributions, the scope of responsibility and
accountability of such Directors, taking into consideration
of the Company’s performance and prevailing market
conditions.

The remuneration policy of Non-executive and Independent
Non-executive Directors is to ensure that the Non-executive
and Independent Non-executive Directors are adequately
compensated for their efforts and time dedicated to the
Company’s affairs including their participation in respective
Board committees. The emoluments of Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive Directors are determined with
reference to their skills, experience, knowledge, duties and
market trends.
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As at the date of this Annual Report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. CHEUNG Yick Hung Jackie (Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. CHUNG Koon Yan and
Dr. WONG Chi Ying Anthony.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least annually
or more or less frequently as circumstances require. The
Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2016. Individual attendance records of
each Remuneration Committee member are set out in the
table on page 32 of this Annual Report.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed and recommended to the Board on the
proposed amendments to the remuneration packages of all
Directors for the year ending 31 March 2017.

In conducting its work in relation to the remuneration of
Directors and senior management, the Remuneration
Committee ensured that no Director or any of his associates
was involved in determining his own remuneration. It also
ensured that remuneration levels should be sufficient to
attract and retain Directors to run the Company successfully
without paying more than necessary.

The Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference were
reviewed during the year to ensure they continue to meet
the needs of the Company and to ensure compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code.

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of
the Financial Statements

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2016.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 60 to 61 of this Annual Report.
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Remuneration of Members of the Senior SREEEKEZRFHFINGEEE 5

Management by Band 2 5

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate RIBGZEEATAISFANEXEBA .5 B E
Governance Code, the remuneration of members of the ZE-RNFZA=T—HULFE =HEE
senior management by band for the year ended 31 March EBRERFMERES S 2HMEHFMT

2016 is set out below:

Number of
members
of senior

management

EREEE

BB A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 7T
Total w5t
Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year BREFHE T R"FZA=+—BILFE
ended 31 March 2016 are set out in note 10(a) to the ZHINFEIBE IR A SRR MIFE10() °
consolidated financial statements.
Auditor’s Remuneration 2N =
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the remuneration BE-_ZT—RFZA=1+—HILFE ' @K
paid to the Company’s external auditor, BDO Limited, is set DRINER AT E B L E RS T BT
out below: BRARZ N zMeHTIMT -
Amount of Fees
Type of Services AR A Payable/Paid
B
EfNERASHE
HKS$
BT
Audit Services Eaf RS 820,000
Non-audit Services T R -
Total Bt 820,000
Risk and Internal Control JE e % A B B 2
The Board is responsible for maintaining the adequate EERARARBRARNANEERRERER
systems of internal control and risk management to mitigate RE - AEERRER - ARRERREER R
risk and to safeguard the interests of shareholders and SEEE  WEEZZEGZXERT 8F
the Group’s assets, and with the support of the Audit REEFGRITZSERR ZMK -

Committee, reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on
an annual basis on behalf of the Board.
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During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Board,

through the Audit Committee, conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company,
including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.

There was no internal audit function within the Group that

is separate and independent from the Group’s finance team
for the year ended 31 March 2016. The Board has reviewed
the need for an independent internal audit function and is
of the view that in light of the nature and complexity of the
business of the Group, external independent professionals
will be appointed to perform internal audit functions for the
Group in order to meet its needs. Internal audit function

will form a key part of the internal control framework,
reporting to the Audit Committee. The internal audit function
monitors compliance with policies and standards and the
effectiveness of internal control structures across the whole
Group.

Compliance Officer

Mr. Mansfield WONG, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and Executive Director of our Group, has been designated
as the Compliance Officer of our Group to oversee all
compliance matters.

Directors’ Non-Competition Undertaking

Each of Mr. Mansfield WONG, Mr. Arthur LAM and

Mr. Alastair LAM, being the Directors of the Company,
entered into a non-competition undertaking with the
Company with effect from 24 March 2015 (the “Directors’
Non-competition Undertaking”). Please refer to our
Prospectus for additional information on the Directors’
Non-competition Undertaking.

Each of Mr. Mansfield WONG, Mr. Arthur LAM and Mr.
Alastair LAM has confirmed compliance with the terms of
the Directors’ Non-competition Undertaking during the year
ended 31 March 2016. All the Independent Non-executive
Directors are of the view that the above-mentioned
Directors have been in compliance with the Directors’
Non-competition Undertaking in favour of the Company.
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Company Secretary

Mr. TONG Man Chun, our Company Secretary, is a full time
employee of the Group and has day-to-day knowledge of
the Company’s affairs. Mr. TONG has complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 5.15
of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March
2016.

Biographical details of the Company Secretary is set out in
the section headed “Biographical Details of the Directors
and Senior Management” on pages 22 to 26 of this Annual
Report.

Shareholders’ Rights and
Communication with Shareholders

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information. The Board endeavours to maintain
an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular,
through annual general meetings and other general
meetings, to communicate with them/answer their enquiries,
and encourage their participation.

Information is made available to shareholders through

a number of means, including formal announcements

of information required under the GEM Listing Rules

and through the constructive use of general meetings.
Updated information (for example, including in relation

to the Company’s financial information and its corporate
governance practices) as well as standing information about
the Company is also made available through the Company’s
website at www.synergy-group.com.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum

for communication between the Board and shareholders.
The Chairman of the Board, as well as the chairmen and/
or other members of the Board’s three committees will,

in the absence of unforeseen circumstances, attend to
answer questions raised at these meetings. The external
auditors will be asked to attend the annual general meeting
to answer questions about relevant matters including the
conduct of the audit, the auditors’ report and auditor
independence.
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To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions will be proposed for each substantially separate
issue at general meetings, including the election of individual
directors. All resolutions put forward at general meetings
will be voted on by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules,
and poll results will be published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange after each general
meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, any one or more shareholders of the Company
holding as at the date of deposit of the requisition not

less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves), may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, and all
reasonably expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them
by the Company.

Note: Any such written requisition from the shareholders should be marked
“Shareholders’ Communication” on the envelope.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose
a Person for Election as a Director
Shareholders may propose a person for election as Director,

the procedures of which are available on the Company’s
website at www.synergy-group.com.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Put
Forward Proposals at General Meeting

Within 10 days of the date on which a notice (the “Notice”)
is deemed to be received by shareholders in respect of any
general meeting of the Company (the “Relevant General
Meeting”), any one or more shareholders holding at least
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company may
together, by written notice to the Company at Room 404B,
4/F, Block B, Seaview Estate, Nos. 4-6 Watson Road, North
Point, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board or the
Company Secretary, propose a resolution to be proposed
and considered at the Relevant General Meeting in addition
to the resolutions set out in the Notice. Such written notice
shall be accompanied by a statement in no more than 1,000
words explaining the matters referred to, and the reasons
for, any such proposed resolution. Following the receipt of
such written notice and accompanying statement by the
Company, the Company may, in the Company’s absolute
discretion (taking into account, without limitation, legal,
regulatory and practical considerations relating to the issue
of any supplemental notice to all shareholders in relation

to the Relevant General Meeting), include the proposed
resolution in the business of (i) the Relevant General
Meeting or (ii) in a general meeting of the Company that is
subsequent to the Relevant General Meeting.

The Company will circulate a revised Notice including any
proposed resolution and the accompanying statement to all
shareholders in accordance with the Articles of Association
provided that if, in the Company’s sole opinion (without
have to give reasons therefor), the above process is being
abused in any way whatsoever, the Company has absolute
discretion to not include such proposed resolution in the
business of the Relevant General Meeting or a subsequent
general meeting of the Company.

Note: Any such written notice from the shareholders should be marked
“Shareholders’ Communication” on the envelope.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Put
Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders are, at any time, welcome to raise questions
and request information (to the extent it is publicly
available and appropriate to provide) from the Board and
management by writing to:

Room 404B, 4/F, Block B, Seaview Estate
Nos.4-6 Watson Road, North Point, Hong Kong
Attention: Mr. Manfred TONG

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit
and send the original duly signed written requisition, notice
or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company during the year ended 31
March 2016.

Annual General Meeting for the Year
2016 (the “2016 AGM”)

The 2016 AGM of the Company will be held on Wednesday,
28 September 2016. A circular containing, among other
matters, further information relating to the 2016 AGM will be
despatched to the shareholders of the Company as soon as
practicable.

Closure of Register of Members

For the purpose of determining the identity of shareholders
who are entitled to attend and vote at the 2016 AGM, the
Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 26 September 2016 to Wednesday, 28 September
2016, both dates inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to

be eligible for attending and voting at the 2016 AGM, all
duly completed and signed transfer forms accompanied

by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 23 September 2016.
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Compliance Disclosures and Other
Matters

The GEM Listing Rules require certain corporate governance
disclosures to be made. This section of the report details
certain disclosures that have not been covered above.

Disclosure of Directors’ Information pursuant to
the GEM Listing Rule 17.50A(1)

Director’s Position Held

Mr. LAM Arthur, an Executive Director of the Company, was
appointed as the Vice Chairman of the Board with effect
from 3 February 2016.

Other Major Position Held

On 1 January 2016, Mr. CHEUNG Yick Hung Jackie retired
as a District Councillor of the Central and Western District
Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

Directors’ Fees

On 3 February 2016, the Remuneration Committee
recommended and the Board approved the following with
effect from 1 April 2016:

—  the increase of Director’s remuneration of Mr. Mansfield
WONG and Mr. LAM Arthur for their roles as an
Executive Director to HK$900,000 per annum;

— the increase of Director’s remuneration of Mr. Alastair
LAM for his role as a Non-executive Director to
HK$216,000 per annum;

— the increase of Director’s remuneration of Mr. CHUNG
Koon Yan, Mr. Jackie CHEUNG and Dr. Anthony
WONG for their roles as an Independent Non-executive
Director to HK$216,000 per annum.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2016.

Principal Businesses

The principal business of the Company is investment
holding and the principal businesses of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal businesses during the
year ended 31 March 2016.

Annual Results and Distributions

The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 62. The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last four financial years is set out on
page 5. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2016 are set out in Note
27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company

and the Group are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements. As at 31 March 2016, the Company’s
reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance
with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, amounting
to HK$33.6 million. This includes the Company’s share
premium and contributed surplus in the amounts of
HK$34.7 million and HK$3.2 million, respectively as at 31
March 2016, which may be distributable to the shareholders
of the Company subject to the provisions of the Company’s
memorandum and Articles of Association and provided

that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year ended 31 March
2016 are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31
March 2016 and as at the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Man Fai Mansfield

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LAM Arthur

(Vice Chairman)

Non-executive Director

Mr. LAM Chung Ho Alastair

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHUNG Koon Yan
Mr. CHEUNG Yick Hung Jackie
Dr. WONG Chi Ying Anthony

In accordance with our Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting at least one-third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least
once every three years. Such retiring Directors may, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the annual general
meeting. All Directors appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
shareholders after their appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting and all Directors appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting and
shall then be eligible for re-election.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract
with any member of the Group which in order to entitle

the Company to terminate the service contract, expressly
requires the Company to give a period of notice of more
than 1 year or to pay compensation or make other
payments equivalent to more than 1 year’s remuneration,
other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 22 to 26 of
this Annual Report.

Independent Non-executive Directors’
Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence in relation to their services for the year
ended 31 March 2016 pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the Company considers all Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ Remuneration

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note
10(a) to the consolidated financial statements. Details

of emolument policy are set out in the section headed
“Remuneration Committee” to Corporate Governance
Report in this Annual Report.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of our Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of our Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SF0O”)) which were notified to our Company and the Stock
Exchange under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register as referred to therein, or
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to securities transactions by the Directors required
to be notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company
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Approximate
Percentage of

Number of Issued Share
Name of Director Nature of Interest and Capacity Shares Capital
HERITRE
E=nS BREMERSH RHOHBE ZBHEIHL
Mr. LAM Chung Ho Alastair Beneficial owner 49,800,734 9.96%
MERESE EREAA
Mr. WONG Man Fai Mansfield Mot Interest in controlled corporation 47,249,204 9.45%
B S A ) REHEEE R
Mr. LAM Arthur Beneficial owner 35,464,437 7.09%

MRS AE EnBEAA

Note: Abundance Development Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. WONG Man
Fai Mansfield. Under the SFO, Mr. WONG Man Fai Mansfield is deemed
to be interested in all the shares of the Company owned by Abundance
Development Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of

the Directors or chief executives of our Company had any
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares

or debentures of our Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to our Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV

of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of
the SFQO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by Directors
to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Person’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares

So far as our Directors are aware, as at 31 March 2016, the
persons/entities (other than the Directors or chief executives
of our Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed
to our Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and

3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register of our Company required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO or who were directly or indirectly interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any member of our Group were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company
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Approximate
Percentage of

Number of Issued Share
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest and Capacity Shares Capital
HEBTRAE
BREEE A EatEREH ROHBE ZBOEOHL
Abundance Development Limited Nete ) Beneficial owner 47,249,204 9.45%
ERERAGR AT WED EmEEA
Ms. CAl Linda Xin Xin Note2) Interest of spouse 47,249,204 9.45%
BRI £ M) IRy
Ms. LIANG Wai Yun Fiona Mote3) Interest of spouse 35,464,437 7.09%
REB L4 WEs) e
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Notes:

1. Abundance Development Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. WONG Man
Fai Mansfield.

2. Ms. CAl Linda Xin Xin is the spouse of Mr. WONG Man Fai Mansfield.
Under the SFO, Mr. WONG Man Fai Mansfield is deemed to be
interested in all the shares of the Company owned by Abundance
Development Limited, and Ms. CAl Linda Xin Xin is deemed to be
interested in all the shares of the Company in which Mr. WONG Man
Fai Mansfield is interested.

3. Ms. LIANG Wai Yun Fiona is the spouse of Mr. LAM Arthur. Under the
SFO, Ms. LIANG Wai Yun Fiona is deemed to be interested in all the
shares of the Company in which Mr. LAM Arthur is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, the
Directors were not aware of any persons/entities who

had any interest or short position in the securities in the
Company that would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which would be recorded in the register of the

Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme on
5 March 2015. As at 31 March 2016, no share option was
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme. The following is a summary of the
principal terms of the Share Option Scheme but does not
form part of, nor was it intended to be, part of the Share
Option Scheme nor should it be taken as affecting the
interpretation of the rules of the Share Option Scheme:

(a) The purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme seeks to provide an
incentive for the Qualified Participants (as hereinafter
defined) to work with commitment towards enhancing
the value of our Company and the shares for the
benefit of the shareholders, and to maintain or attract
business relationships with the Qualified Participants
whose contributions are or may be beneficial to the
growth of our Group.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

Who may join

The Board may at its discretion grant options to any
director or employee (whether full time or part time)
of our Company and its subsidiaries and associated
companies (as defined under the Companies
Ordinance) (collectively, “Qualified Participants”).

Grant of Option

An offer of the grant of an option shall be made to

the Qualified Participants by letter in such form as the
Board may from time to time determine, requiring the
Qualified Participants to undertake to hold the option
on the terms on which it is to be granted and to be
bound by the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
(including any operational rules). The offer shall remain
open for acceptance for a period of twenty business
days from the date on which it is made. Subject to

the terms of the offer letter, there shall be no general
performance target to or minimum holding period for
the vesting or exercise of options. An option shall be
deemed to have been accepted and to have taken
effect when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance
of the option duly signed by the option-holder together
with a remittance in favour of our Company of HK$1.00
by way of consideration for the grant of the option shall
have been received by our Company on or before the
last day for acceptance as set out in the offer letter.
The remittance is not in any circumstances refundable.
Once accepted, the option is granted as from the

date on which it was offered to the relevant Qualified
Participant.

Subscription Price

The subscription price (“Subscription Price”) shall

be a price determined by the Board but in any event
shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets on the date on which the option is
offered to a Qualified Participant (“Offer Date”); (i) the
average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the Offer Date;
and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.
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(c)

(d)
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(e)

)

(9)

(h)

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of our
Company shall not in aggregate exceed the number of
shares that shall represent 10% of the total number of
shares in issue as at 24 March 2015 (i.e. the date of
listing of the shares of the Company on GEM, “Listing
Date”), i.e. 50,000,000 shares. For the purpose of
calculating the scheme mandate (“Scheme Mandate”),
options which have been lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the relevant scheme shall not be counted.

Maximum entitlement of shares of each
Qualified Participant

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting in the manner prescribed in the
GEM Listing Rules, the Board shall not grant options
to any option-holder if the acceptance of those options
would result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued to that Qualified Participant on exercise of
his options (including both exercised and outstanding
options) during any 12-month period exceeding 1% of
the total shares then in issue.

Timing for exercise of options

The period during which an option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme (“Option Period”) shall be a period of time to
be notified by the Board to each option-holder, which
the Board may in its absolute discretion determine,
save that such period shall not be more than ten years
commencing on the Offer Date.

Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing from the date
on which the Share Option Scheme is deemed to take
effect in accordance with its terms, after which period
no further options will be granted but the provisions

of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect in all other respects. In particular, all options
granted before the end of such period shall continue to
be valid and exercisable after the end of such period
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

EEROHE

RIEBE IR 8 K AR BT H A BE A%
TERT I AT B 15 () /0 BE AR A 1 B2 1T A9 BR (D
BETEBBEER_ZE—RAF=A=
+HA (ARG RAEIER A
H(IEHmBEH])) BEB8TROEED

10% -+ B150,000,0000% & 17 © stat&Es
LI ([5rBIRRE)) M= @ BIBMABEET
ENEFIE B R EEREIE T T 5T 8 -

BERERSEENBERRE

PREAR DA RNB R A G ARIER £
AR RIEE R BESN - MR E
B e SR PMERN 218 A BE A @
TTREBERE (BRETRRERITED
BRE) MEBER2RECHTAETE
TR D AR B B E 5 B BT 8K
1% @ AIEFE T ERZBERERSEA
B A BAE -

TERBRENDR

BREIRESE2RNBEETLNE
FREBESEANSE ([BRERR])
RIS B RO IRFRTTIE - X ]
TEEBE 2O HIR T -

BREST AR

PR BB M B B AR BIR
BEGRBAR RENz Bt RH+
F AR TIBROEMBLE - B
PRt B RS R PR A T EADAR A
BHRBNRMER - REREREARA
ER A BRER Z R A RR K
AR B ERE IR E R AR
1TfE

“EF-RE/CFAEER

EREEEIERBEEREAR AR




Directors’ Report

EFEEHRE

Arrangement to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at

no time during the year was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Contracts of Significance

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which any member of the Group was a party
and in which a director of the Group had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year ended 31 March 2016.

No contract of significance between the Company, or any
of its subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries subsisted during the year ended 31 March
2016.

No contract of significance for the provision of services
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisted during the
year ended 31 March 2016.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

As of 31 March 2016, none of the Directors, the substantial
shareholders or their respective close associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) had held any position or had
any interest in any businesses or companies that were or
might be materially, either directly or indirectly, competing
with the business of the Group, or gave rise to any concern
regarding conflict of interests during the year ended 31
March 2016.
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EFEHRE

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the aggregate
percentage of purchase attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers is approximately 93.2% of the total
purchases of the Group and the largest supplier included
therein amounted to approximately 30.6%.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the aggregate
percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers is approximately 73.6% of the total sales of the
Group and the largest customer included therein amounted
to approximately 27.7%.

At no time during the year have the Directors, chief
executive, substantial shareholders of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or their associates (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued shares) had any interest in these major
customers and suppliers.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the Group’s related party transaction are set out
in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. Save
for transactions disclosed under Note 32(a)(v) and (vi) which
are continuing connected transactions that are exempt from
annual reporting requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules, such related party transactions do not fall
under the definition of connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction under the GEM Listing Rules.

Saved as disclosed above, there were no other transactions
which are required to be disclosed as continuing connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Board confirms that the Company
has complied with the applicable disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Interests of the Compliance Adviser

As notified by the compliance adviser of the Company,
CLC International Limited, as at 31 March 2016, save for
the compliance adviser agreement dated 12 March 2015
entered into between the Company and CLC International
Limited, neither CLC International Limited nor its directors,
employees and close associates had any interest in relation
to the Group which is required to be notified to the Group
pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report

EFEEHRE

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the
Company'’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 March 2016.

Use of Proceeds from Listing

The net proceeds from the Listing (after deducting the
underwriting fees, capitalised professional service fee and
related expenses) amounted to approximately HK$7.1
million. Details of the use of proceeds are set out in

the section headed “Use of Proceeds” to Management
Discussion and Analysis in this Annual Report.

Corporate Governance

The Company had complied with the code provisions as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules during the year
ended 31 March 2016.

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
27 to 45 of this Annual Report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board was established with its
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28

to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules and code provision C.3.3
of the Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. CHUNG Koon Yan (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. CHEUNG Yick Hung Jackie and Dr. WONG
Chi Ying Anthony.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2016.
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EFEHRE

Business Review

Details of review of the Group’s business is set out in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section on pages 8
to 19 of this Annual Report.

Risks and uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
have been addressed in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section in this Annual Report.

In addition, various financial risks have been disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements of this Annual
Report.

An analysis using financial key performance
indicators

The relevant financial key performance indicators relating
to the business of the Group are set out in the “Financial
Review” section in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” and the consolidated financial statements in this
Annual Report.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the
environment from its business activities. The Group
continually seeks to identify and manage environmental
impacts attributable to its operational activities in order

to minimise these impacts if possible. The Group aims to
maximise energy conservation in its offices by promoting
efficient use of resources and adopting green technologies.
For instance, the Group seeks to upgrade equipment such
as lighting and air-conditioning systems in order to increase
overall operating efficiency. To identify energy efficiency
opportunities, the Group measures and records the energy
consumption intensity from time to time.
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BEEERE

Relationships with employees, customers, HES - EF  HEBRHEMBEGEN
suppliers and other stakeholders BE

The Group ensures all staff is reasonably remunerated and REBERRABEISIEGENTMH - WE
regularly reviews the employment policies on remuneration HRAg a0 75 A S BN K2 B Ath 4@ I B (R IR »

and other benefits.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers REBEARP RHEHEFRITHNER -

and suppliers. The Group maintains close contacts with AEFHFEFHEFERHE  YEHEHT
the customers and has regular review of requirements of FPRERRIEF - AEE S HEHERMHERIR
customers and complaints. The Group will conduct appraisal {EE BiRT A% ©

of the performance of suppliers on regular basis.

Compliance with laws and regulations BFEERER

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with AEERBETERERNEE N R HESF
regulatory requirements and risks of non-compliance with EZRHER - AREFESRHEHER
such requirements. The Group has on-going review the SEEECHMERENRER o KEBW
new enacted laws and regulations affecting the operations HEAWEAEEERERELENERNE
of the Group. The Group is not aware of any material HENEREM -

non-compliance with the laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the business of the Group.

Permitted indemnity provision BEFTHREMR

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, BIERARMWARERZMER  ESRERH
the Directors and other officers, for the time being acting in RRAREBITENEMSRITHRABGA
relation to the affairs of the Company, shall be indemnified KRBz BENRFEESRHE  WHERZ
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the EANTERZTEAZBESETRITHERE R
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, BREBEREMEL - BEZIERRTER
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them MBS EZ2EHL - BF - E - 18
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act K BERAIBERMEE A (10F)
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of WERNFRFEHTHEITHRBEAL BRI -

their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices or
trusts, except such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain
through their own fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and RARIEAAEENEZERSRAITRAER
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and HEENEERRMITRABETRE - U
officers of the Group to protect the Directors and officers REAEEEERESRITRABRNESZHA
of the Group against any potential liability arising from the EHZEEE RS RTRAERERLER
Group’s activities which such Directors and officers may be MAREEESMEENTABEST -

held liable.

Charitable donations ZEEXR

The Group did not make any charitable donation for the AEBREBE-ZT—R"F=-HA=1T—HLHF
year ended 31 March 2016. ER&: S Sk aR CIEE=F=F /4
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EFEHRE

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this Annual Report, based on information
that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company maintained the amount of public float as required
under the GEM Listing Rules.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands.

Independent Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2016 have been audited by BDO Limited, who shall
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the 2016 AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of
BDO Limited as auditor of the Company will be proposed at
the 2016 AGM.

There has been no change in auditors of the Company in
the three years ended 31 March 2016.

By order of the Board

Wong Man Fai Mansfield
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 31 May 2016

EAXNRFRE
RAERAE - REAQ T ABRIEHE
HEREEFD  EFRBALADESE
SR EPRRFREN ARHRE -

BrBEkE

AR B ERAR N 285 5ADIL &
I BRAECIBRIE R -

B A AN

BE_Z-—RF=A=+—HUILFEZFS
BB RERBBLERREMERNE
BAF (KR -FE-AFERRBFAGLE
T RFAEBRRE LRIBEMR) FX - AR
AR T RNFERRAFAG LIRE—
BRER  UBEBBRABLERRGIMES
PRAR R RRANR B HIZEAD o

ARBRBE-_T-AR"F=A=1+—HIE=
(EESERIZREEAL 2 G

EAEERDH

FTE TTHAAHARHTEE
EXNE
BE —E-RFRA=1T—H

ZE-RF /T RFFR OEREEERERERAR

59



Independent Auditor’s Report
VA 2 (CITE =S

IBDO

E5% 1 +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

EBTHEP11158
KR H>251E

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SYNERGY GROUP
HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements

of Synergy Group Holdings International Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set
out on pages 62 to 144, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,

the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that

give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,

and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
the terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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BY 2B E

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain

audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give

a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group

as at 31 March 2016 and of its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Or Ping

Practising Certificate Number P05412

Hong Kong, 31 May 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FeErENE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE-_Z—XF=A=+—HLFE

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B &E FH&xT FHIT
Revenue WA 7(a) 130,068 111,494
Cost of sales SHE AR (60,855) (47,655)
Gross profit ER 69,213 63,839
Other income and gains H U A R ias 7(b) 2,180 1,891
Administrative expenses ITBRX (15,604) (22,227)
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SR A (4,613) (2,775)
Finance costs 3PN 8 (421) (13)
Other expenses HA X (1,530) (1,053)
Share of results of associates X N (4,611) (3,604)
Share of results of joint ventures R /NIt = =
Profit before income tax BRPF S B AR R 9 44,614 36,058
Income tax expense Frig B 11(a) (9,212) (9,829)
Profit for the year FREF 35,402 26,229
Other comprehensive income for the FREM2EIA
year
Items that may be reclassified HETREHNIEE
subsequently to profit or loss: B 2ERE
Share of other comprehensive income of &% A T E b
an associate ZHEMBA (69) 5
Total comprehensive income for the ZAATEBAELER
year attributable to the owners of MU AMEEE
the Company 35,333 26,234
Earnings per share for profit ANTEBEAEMNER
attributable to the owners of the EMNEREF
Company during the year
- Basic (HK cents) — B (BA) 13 7.1 6.3
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fre BRI R

As at 31 March 2016
RZZE—R"F=A=+—AH

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Interests in associates
Finance lease receivables
Rental deposits

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Finance lease receivables

Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

Due from associates

Pledged bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Accruals, other payables and deposits
received

Borrowings

Due to a related company

Provision for taxation

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deposits received
Borrowings

Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

2016 2015
—XRE —RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FHBxT FH&ETT
BERERE
FIRBEE
¥ - BB LR 14 2,696 4,788
REEE R RIS 17 26,062 11,299
FEU B E T E R E 18 12,234 811
Heke - 156
40,992 17,054
REBEE
FE 19 13,721 195
H 5 AR K 20 84,941 58,550
JEU Bh & H E /08 18 2,510 851
e BENRER
ﬁmféuﬂzmlﬁ 21 9,509 12,148
JE W B N B FR IR 22(a) 8,667 2,180
Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂ?w 23 2,500 =
HehIReEEY 23 26,576 27,735
148,424 101,659
REBEE
=) AL 24 16,323 6,403
JEETEH - At E[ I8
MBUWZ e 25 7,348 6,790
fE 26 25,280 112
JENRE AR A 22(b) 112 120
IR R 7,635 7,346
56,698 20,771
REBEEFE 91,726 80,888
EEHABERABERS 132,718 97,942
ERBERS
B iz & 25 147 298
EE 26 217 337
EERIEEE 11(b) 118 404
482 1,039
EEFE 132,236 96,903

—T-RF T FER

ERE KB BR AR AR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI &

As at 31 March 2016
RZZE—R"F=A=+—AH

2016 2015
—F-AR"f CZT-hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B &E FHExT FHTT
EQUITY EE
Equity attributable to the owners of 72 B#EHE AEGER
the Company

Share capital A% A 27 5,000 5,000
Reserves & 28 127,236 91,903
Total equity AR 132,236 96,903

On behalf of the Board RREEE
Wong Man Fai Mansfield Lam Arthur
BEXE MRE
Director Director
E=a EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
yo= A LR =

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_Z—ARE=ZA=1+—HILEE

Foreign
Share Share Capital Merger exchange Retained
capital premium* reserves*  reserve* reserves* profits* Total

BRE  ROEE* EXRE SHRERE SNERE RERR CHI

HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKEO000 HKE000  HK$'000

TEX FER TEX FEX FTEX FET FET
(note 27)  (note 28)  (note 28)  (note 28)
(Mzt27)  (Ktskes)  (Biit2s)  (if=r28)

At 1 April 2014 R-E-—DNE
MA—H = - 7,388 16,333 - 11,349 35,070
Arising on ErBEH
Reorganisation 4,150 - - (4,150) - - -
Issue of shares by FERERT
placing B 15 850 41,650 - - - = 42,500
Share issues expenses {7 #17H 3 - (6,901) - - - - (6,901)
Transactions with HEFAZRS
owners 5,000 34,749 - (4,150) - - 35,599
Profit for the year FRH = - - - - 26,229 26,229
Other comprehensive  H i 2EUA
income
Share of other JE{REE & R A
comprehensive Hi 2@
income of an WA
associate - - = = 5 - 5
Total comprehensive ~ ERZEKA
income for the year ~ #%A = = = - 5 26,229 26,234
At 31 March 2015 and R=B—HF
1 April 2015 =A=+-A
E-—F-1F
mA—H 5,000 34,749 7,388 12,183 B 37,578 96,903
Profit for the year F A% = - - - - 35,402 35,402
Other comprehensive  E A2 U A
income
Share of other JEfRER & 1A
comprehensive Hi 2w
income of an WA
associate - - = = (69) = (69)
Total comprehensive  ERZERA
income for the year ~ 42%8 - - = = (69) 35402 35,333
At 31 March 2016 RZ-Z—X#F
=A=+—H 5,000 34,749 7,388 12,183 (64) 72,980 132,236
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZERBERERENR-Z—"F=-A=1+—H2Z&
approximately HK$127,236,000 in the consolidated statement of ERBMRRRAZ G FEHEL127,236,0008 7T (=
financial position as at 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$91,903,000). ZT—HF : 91,908,000/87T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meRenER

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE-_Z—XF=A=+—HLFE

2016 2015
—B-RF —E—0F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 FHET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities REKLIHNRERE
Profit before income tax B P75 B0 A& F) 44,614 36,058
Adjustments for: RIS IEAE
Interest income FEUWA 7(b) (119) -
Interest expense MERZ 8 321 13
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESHE 9 = 578
Bad debts written off EIRMR 9 12 40
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEREEITE
equipment 9 1,805 2,208
Losses on disposals of property, HEWE  BER
plant and equipment Rl BB 9 906 405
Loss on disposal of a joint venture HEAE A2 EE 9 - 199
Share of results of associates i =N e 4,611 3,604
Warranty provision, net of reversal RIEHME - MR 9 402 326
Write-off of inventories FEME 9 43 -
Operating profit before working capital LB E S EF RIS E R
changes 52,599 43,431
(Increase)/decrease in inventories TE (&gm), wmd 33 (12,943) 1,097
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables B 5 REUEER (4E10),/
NERA (26,403) 11,307
Increase in finance lease receivables JE Y i & FH & ZOE I N (13,082) (953)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, e AR FOAREMER
prepayments and other receivables FIERL /() 2,795 (8,458)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from  fEULEE L A B FE
associates (gm),/ md (6,487) 1,531
Increase in trade payables B 5 ERFE N 9,920 566
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to a  JEfT EE A RI3E
related company G A,/ # 8) 67
Increase/(decrease) in accruals, other JEETER - HtENRER
payables and deposits received BRSO d) 5 (2,146)
Cash generated from operations REMERE 6,396 46,442
Income tax paid BATEE (9,209) (15,880)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BESEE (FTR),/ s
operating activities RETHE (2,813) 30,562
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE—Z—X"F=A=+—HLHFE

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of property, plant and
equipment

Proceed from disposals of property, plant
and equipment

Investment in an associate

Interest income received

Increase in pledged bank deposits

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid on borrowings

New borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Net proceeds from issue of shares

Dividends paid

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year

2016 2015
—B-AF  —T-0F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B s FRT FAT
RERETHNRESRE
BEDME  BEMRE
(1,244) (1,881)
LEME - BB R&E
FTiS kIR 56 =
REERRZIRE (19,500) =
BRI B A 115 =
B RITEFRIE N (2,500) =
REZBFARESFE (23,073) (1,881)
REMETHNRESRE
EAERF S (321) (13)
8 2R 25,300 485
BEBN (252) (203)
RN BT S RIRF 5E - 35,599
EARE - (40,016)
BETHHAE (FTA)
Be&FE 24,727 (4,148)
ReRESZEY
(R2) /T8 (1,159) 24,533
REDWRERBESSEY
27,735 3,202
RERNWBRERESEEY
26,576 27,735
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 18 TR R M 5

31 March 2016
—ZT—XRF=A=+—H

1. General information, reorganisation
and basis of presentation

Synergy Group Holdings International Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on
14 December 2011. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
The principal place of business of the Company is
Room 404B, 4/F, Block B, Seaview Estate, Nos. 4-6
Watson Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the
Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Company
and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the
“Group” hereafter.

In connection with the listing of the shares of the
Company on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), the Company underwent a reorganisation
(the “Reorganisation”) and the Company has become
the holding company of its subsidiaries now comprising
the Group since 5 March 2015. The shares of the
Company were listed on GEM on 24 March 2015.

Details of the Reorganisation are set out in the section
headed “History and Corporate Development” to the
prospectus of the Company dated 13 March 2015.

—RER - EERZINEE

EseEBIEREEER AR ([ 7 )
RR_E——F+-_A+MHBERESH
SEMKc EHREBRAA - XA
A)F T i 5 B8R b ik A& Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °
ARENFEELE £ AEBILARERE
B4-6508 R AEBRE4IEL04BE ©

ARBNEBRHRREER - AQF]
ME AR EBXRBHBHNGRA M
WRMEE3 - NAABREMBARAT
mREA [ A%KE] -

AARRRBENREBEBMERZAARR
A ([BEpr]) AR (TRIFR]) £
W ARAHETEM ([EE]) > AR
AE-E-RAF=ARBEEKNAREE
RAEENMB AR ZZERAT - AR
ARHENR-Z—RAF=A-_THMAER
BIEIRET ©

ERSENFBERNARRBHA=-F
—HFE=ZAT=ZBHHRERERT [ELRk
NEBR] —E -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R 2R Y

31 March 2016
—F-AFZA=+-H

General information, reorganisation
and basis of presentation -
Continued

Upon completion of the Reorganisation but before
placing, the equity interest held by the Company’s
shareholders mirrored their respective percentage of
equity interest in Synergy Group Worldwide Limited
(“Synergy Worldwide”) before the Reorganisation, where
Synergy Worldwide was the then holding company of
the Group. The Group is regarded as a continuation of
Synergy Worldwide resulting from the Reorganisation
as there is no change in the economic substance of
the Group. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements were prepared using the merger accounting
and as if the current group structure had always been
in existence. Accordingly, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2015 include the results, changes in equity and cash
flows of the companies now comprising the Group from
the earliest date presented or since their respective
dates of incorporation, whichever was shorter, as if

the current group structure had been in existence
throughout those years. The consolidated statement

of financial position of the Group as of 31 March 2015
has been prepared to present the assets and liabilities
of the companies now comprising the Group as if the
current group structure had been in existence at that
date. No adjustment is made to reflect fair values, or to
recognise any new assets or liabilities as a result of the
Reorganisation.

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2016 were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 31 May 2016.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B TS ER AR MY RE

31 March 2016
—ZT—XRF=A=+—H

2. Adoption of Hong Kong financial
reporting standards (“HKFRSs”)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 April 2015

In current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following new or revised HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
which are relevant to and effective for the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual year
beginning on 1 April 2015.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

The adoption of these amendments has no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

(@)

BB B RS 2R
(&R REZEL )

RAHRTRIEFT B BUBREE
Al-R=T-AFNA—B4EX
RAEE  AEEBEXERTIHEE
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BREER > ZFLAEAKER_-F
—hFMA—-BRENFEZ&FE MG
BRBEBANZERBEHRRER

EREUBHREER —T-—TFF
(BETAN) —F—=

R ERF S i

ERMBERELER —T——FF
(BETA) B4

A ERF 2 i

RNZFERTHARE 28 M REK
BEEATE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R 2R Y

31 March 2016
—T—XRF=A=+—H

2. Adoption of Hong Kong financial
reporting standards (“HKFRSs”) -

Continued

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group had
early adopted the amendments to HKAS 27 “Equity
Method in Separate Financial Statements”. Apart from
above-mentioned, the following new/revised HKFRSs,
potentially relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

HKFRS 9 (2014)

Amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Annual Improvements

2012-2014 Cycle'

Disclosure Initiative’

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation’

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities:
Applying the
Consolidation Exception’

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?
Leases*

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for
adoption

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B TS ER AR MY RE

31 March 2016
—ZT—XRF=A=+—H

2. Adoption of Hong Kong financial
reporting standards (“HKFRSs”) -
Continued

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective - Continued

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments are designed to encourage entities
to use judgement in the application of HKAS 1 when
considering the layout and content of their financial
statements.

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and
that have contractual terms that give rise to cash

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual
cash flow characteristics test) are generally measured
at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet the
contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”) if the objective of the entity’s business
model is both to hold and collect the contractual cash
flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities may
make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to
measure equity instruments that are not held for trading
at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments

are measured at fair value through profit and loss
(“FVTPL”).

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and

new general hedge accounting requirements to allow
entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in financial statements.

(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R 2R Y

31 March 2016
—T—XRF=A=+—H

2.

(b)

Adoption of Hong Kong financial 2.
reporting standards (“HKFRSs”) -
Continued

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued (b)

but are not yet effective - Continued

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments — Continued

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS
39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and
related interpretations.
e  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
e  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e  Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations

e  Step 5: Recognise revenue when each
performance obligation is satisfied

BB B RS 2R
([ERMBREEL ) - &

BB R ERBFRT EIERT
ERNBREEL - &
BB B ERFEIR (—F
) —2@MTR &

—HF

BEMBRELEYNEOREBMB LG E
AIFEIRAe A ERER - DEKE
BRE  HRAFEFABZENHSHE
F@%'M$EFEEHAZ@%ﬁW
NHEZ S S BN E M2 E R AR -
BRIFERE L IIBAGFTREAC © BESD -
BEMBREENFOIRRERTEGAE
AIERABBUEEREMEER TR
BEMNHE -

BRI ERE 15598 — BFARHA
%%ﬁWﬂ*“ MU AFERIER - 1E
WO R A A BB ERK AR EFSIR
1% [ bR B8 T8 HA /G Mk SR P ARGRE 7
N ERIS B EIH £ 5 A B ek AR
BTEF - BAPBREERFE 155
RIBHWATERIES - RREEEE:
ARIZE185R WAl BB ERE
SREAR] REBERE -

o F—F: BHREPHIILZAR

s E_¥ BAARZEHNERE

s F=¥ BEXRHER

s FEHY: NEXRFHERERMNEM

o FAY: REMBEBETEERE
BHEA

—T-RF T FER

ERE KB BR AR AR




74

Notes to the Financial Statements

B TS ER AR MY RE

31 March 2016
—ZT—XRF=A=+—H

2.

(b)

Adoption of Hong Kong financial
reporting standards (“HKFRSs”) -
Continued

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective - Continued

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers —
Continued

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impact of the above new/revised
HKFRSs apart from HKFRS 16 and the directors so far
concluded that the application of these new/revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16 supersedes HKAS 17 “Leases”, HK(IFRIC)
— Int 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contain
a Lease”, HK(SIC) — Int 15 “Operating Lease —
Incentives” and HK(SIC) — Int 27 “Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of
a Lease”.

HKFRS 16 eliminates the classification by a lessee

of leases as either operating or finance. Instead all
leases are treated in a similar way to finance leases

in accordance with HKAS 17 “Leases”. Under HKFRS
16, leases are recorded on the statement of financial
position by recognising a liability for the present value
of its obligation to make future lease payments with an
asset (comprised of the amount of lease liability plus
certain other amounts) either being disclosed separately
in the statement of financial position (within right-of-use
assets) or together with property, plant and equipment.
The most significant effect of the new requirements will
be an increase in recognised lease assets and financial
liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R 2R Y

31 March 2016
—T—XRF=A=+—H

2.

(b)

Adoption of Hong Kong financial 2.
reporting standards (“HKFRSs”) -
Continued

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued (b)

but are not yet effective - Continued

HKFRS 16 — Leases — Continued

There are some exemptions. HKFRS 16 contains
options which do not require a lessee to recognise
assets and liabilities for (a) short term leases (i.e.
lease of 12 months or less, including the effect of any
extension options) and (b) leases of low value assets
(for example, a lease of a personal computer).

HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor’s
accounting requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly,

a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating
leases or finance leases, and to account for those two
types of leases differently. In classifying a sublease,
an intermediate lessor shall classify the sublease as

a finance lease or an operating lease as follows: (a)

if the head lease is a short-term lease that the entity,
as a lessee, the sublease shall be reclassified as an
operating lease; (b) otherwise, the sublease shall be
classified by reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease, rather than by reference to the
underlying asset.

HKFRS 16 clarifies that a lessee separates lease
components and service components of a contract,
and applies the lease accounting requirements only to
the lease components.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impact of application of HKFRS 16, the
directors consider that it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect of the adoption of
HKFRS 16 until the Group performs a detailed review.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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31 March 2016
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2. Adoption of Hong Kong financial
reporting standards (“HKFRSs”) -
Continued

(c) Amended GEM Listing Rules (as below-
mentioned) relating to the presentation and
disclosures in financial statements

The amended Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “Amended
GEM Listing Rules”) in relation to the presentation

and disclosures in financial statements, including

the amendments with reference to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622, apply to the
Company in this financial year.

The directors consider that there is no impact on the
Group’s financial position or performance, however
the Amended GEM Listing Rules impacts on the
presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. For example, the statement of
financial position of the Company is now presented in
the notes to the financial statements rather than as a
primary statement and related notes to the statement
of financial position of the Company are generally no
longer presented.

3. Basis of preparation

(a) Basis of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
HKASs and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “HKFRS”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
In addition, the financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

(c)

(@)

(b)

(c)

RAME BB RS
([ &R S A

%

L oo
A’Iﬂm}

M

\

BERBRRN2ZIIRBBERR2EE
Al RIEAR LR B (a0 T SCARrER)

HEEHERN 2T MR EA R KB

B X FralEiRaE s LR A ([&ERT Al
ERETRY ) (BIELEBEB QA
1) (£622F) fEHAIER]) RAHBUAF
EREANRALRR

EEARAEENM IR RAMS
2XTE o R - KIEFTRIER EMAR
AR MBRERN 25 MBERMT
% BHIME - ARRM BN RIRE
RMBEREMERT - MIFAEBHRK
25 - MARBFBRAR BRI
—RABE -

A I B 2E
BREE

e MBRRIIREMBEREEYE
WELA - FEGHEARRE (TR
B EEMHmEER]) REE (RRIF
1) BB AREMmD] o BN - MBHERE
R RATEIZIRE S EmRAIRE 2 E
EWBEEH -

SRR
MRS R TYIRIRIE L P A B4R ]

DEERZFIEE

MgmERLAET (L)) 25 - AR5
BTSN FREBECHMOEREEOT

fiz o

76 Synergy Group Holdings International Limited ~ Annual Report 2015/2016



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R 2R Y

31 March 2016
—T—XRF=A=+—H

4.

(a)

(b)

Summary of significant accounting
policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise

the financial statements of the Company and

its subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed

of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates

of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls

an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (i) power over the investee, (ii) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee, and (iii)
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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4.

(c)

Summary of significant accounting
policies - Continued

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but not control or joint control
over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those
losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated
against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the
asset transferred they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate.
Where there is objective evidence that the investment
in an associate has been impaired, the carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in the same
way as other non-financial assets.
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4.

(d)

Summary of significant accounting
policies - Continued

Joint arrangements

The group is a party to a joint arrangement where
there is a contractual arrangement that confers joint
control over the relevant activities of the arrangement
to the group and at least one other party. Joint control
is assessed under the same principles as control over
subsidiaries.

The group classifies its interests in joint arrangements
as either:

e Joint ventures: where the group has rights to only
the net assets of the joint arrangement; or

e Joint operations: where the group has both the
rights to assets and obligations for the liabilities of
the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

e  The structure of the joint arrangement;

e The legal form of joint arrangements structured
through a separate vehicle;

e The contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

e Any other facts and circumstances (including any
other contractual arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint ventures
in the same manner as investments in associates (i.e.
using the equity method — see note 4(c)).

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture
above the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the investment in joint venture. Where there
is objective evidence that the investment in a joint
venture has been impaired the carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in the same way as
other non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests in joint operations
by recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses in accordance with its contractually
conferred rights and obligations.
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4. Summary of significant accounting 4. BEEETHERBE - &
policies - Continued

(e) Property, plant and equipment (e) M¥- - MERREE
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction WE - BER&E (2R (BT
in progress (“CIP”) are stated at cost less accumulated 12 1) BRoN) AR R FHTE R ZFHR
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. EEEE BEXNABREEBEERLK
The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price % B B i BUE (R RS B (E L E R i
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the ZEREZRIGRA - REMANEER
asset to the working condition and location for its %8 B AR 2 RREN R A A BE R
intended use. Subsequent costs are included in the RAEBEIW R ST EBIHEA KA ZER
asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate T I ARENRHEERERRE
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that YEE (REAE) - REEMAAR (1
future economic benefits associated with the item will B R4E) NEEE ZHRERERFH
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be Bk °

measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to the profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment other M - BEREE (EREIRRIN) RE
than CIP is provided over their estimated useful lives, 2 MErAERFHRNFERES AR
using the straight line method. The assets’ residual E NEREEH BEZFBRE -
values, useful lives and depreciation methods are AEAFRRITERES TR RAR
reviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate, at each (Wi@E) - hEr Al EREHMT -
reporting date. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:
Leasehold improvements 3 years or over the lease HEMERE SF LR
terms, whichever is shorter (R E)
Furniture, fixtures and office 2 years RifL - BB R 24
equipment NS
Lighting systems 5 years FRBA R4 5%
The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal RERASHEREAS 7 WEEER T
is determined as the difference between the sales EMERBEEABEERREZENE
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 5 WREEREEBRINED -

recognised in profit or loss upon disposal.
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4.

(e)

(f)

(9)

Summary of significant accounting 4.
policies - Continued
Property, plant and equipment - Continued (e)

CIP, which is stated at cost less impairment losses,
representing lighting systems pending installation as
well as cost incurred during the periods of installation
and testing. CIP is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress until
it is completed and ready for its intended use.

Revenue recognition (f)

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership, which is at the time
of delivery and the title is passed to customer.

Leasing service income consists of:

(i)  operating lease rental income and is recognised
on a time proportion basis over the period of lease
term; or

(i) finance lease income and is recognised over the
period of lease using the effective interest method.

Consultancy and management service income is
recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Leasing (9

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.
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4. Summary of significant accounting
policies - Continued

(g) Leasing - Continued

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recorded as receivables at the amount of the Group’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income

is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised

in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets at their fair value or, if lower,

the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding lease commitment is shown as a
liability. Lease payments are analysed between capital
and interest. The interest element is charged to profit
or loss over the period of the lease and is calculated
so that it represents a constant proportion of the lease
liability. The capital element reduces the balance owed
to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases
are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Lease incentives received are
recognised as an integrated part of the total rental
expense, over the term of the lease.
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4. Summary of significant accounting
policies - Continued

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

U

(i)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
as follows.

Exclusive rights to use technical
know-how

5 years

Impairment

At the end of the reporting periods, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its intangible
assets to determine whether there is an indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as an income
immediately.
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4. Summary of significant accounting 4. BEEGTTHERME -8
policies - Continued

(i) Inventories iy &€
Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and GFEVNF LKA ERR - HigRK AR
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable Al EIRFEME P CRIEE®ER - AR
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of BRE—VEERAE BERNAREFE
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the ififﬁiijiiﬁfﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁgiz,ﬁ\@}ﬁ
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost AN o AT BRI AT E o ]
is calculated using the weighted-average basis. Net REEAFEFBIER 216&%1;:\/)536?&
realisable value represents the estimated selling price TERKEHE PR 2 [ aT AR o

in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents () RERBReEEY
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank fﬁ/f&fﬁﬁ¥f YIBIEIRTT R FER
and in hand, form an integral part of the Group’s cash & BRASEEIRSEEM A sk EER
management. 9 o
(k) Financial Instruments (k) £@TH
(i) Financial assets () ZEEE
The Group classifies its financial assets at initial VI HERE - NEERBUIEE
recognition, depending on the purpose for which ENENDBEHEMEE - UER
the asset was acquired. Regular way purchases FRAEERNENSREEERS
or sales of financial assets are recognised and HEEMRBRLIEER - LERT
derecognised on a trade date basis. A regular ANEESHEBBES L (&R
way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of ERNRIBIE B BT ISR G B f i
a financial asset under a contract whose terms THREERARMNEE) BE
require delivery of the asset within the time frame HESRMEE °

established generally by regulation or convention
in the marketplace concerned.

Loans and receivables B AR K

These assets are non-derivative financial assets ZEBERFTTESREE - WHE
with fixed or determinable payments that are not BEESAIEENResE  BEEER
quoted in an active market. They arise principally MSWERE - ZEEETZEB
through the provision of goods and services to F’J%}Ekﬁf nRRH (BSEK
customers (trade debtors), and also incorporate R MEXE @ MEEEMEBER
other types of contractual monetary asset. BHNEBEE - RUIFHERE %
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried LEEREENAEABERAEX
at amortised cost using the effective interest AR AR EEES K -

method, less any identified impairment losses.
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4. Summary of significant accounting
policies - Continued

(k) Financial Instruments - Continued

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset

is impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events

that has occurred after the initial recognition

of the asset and that event has an impact on

the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

e a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

e granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty;

e it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or

loss and directly reduces the carrying amount of
financial asset when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of financial asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account.
When any part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for the relevant financial asset.
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4. Summary of significant accounting
policies - Continued

(k) Financial Instruments - Continued

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets — Continued

For loans and receivables — Continued

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

(iii)  Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade payables, accruals and other payables,

amount due to a related company and borrowings,

are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.
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4. Summary of significant accounting
policies - Continued

(k) Financial Instruments - Continued

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium, net
of any related income tax benefit, to the extent
that they are incremental costs directly attributable
to the equity transaction.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction costs

that are directly attributable to the issue of

the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent

to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of:

(i) the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS
18 “Revenue”.
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4. Summary of significant accounting
policies - Continued

(k) Financial Instruments - Continued

(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

() Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and

the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates expected

to apply in the period when the liability is settled or
the asset is realised based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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4.

U]

(m)

Summary of significant accounting
policies - Continued

Income taxes - Continued

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by the group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates

ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at

the rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured

in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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4.

Summary of significant accounting
policies - Continued

(m) Foreign currency - Continued

(n)

Upon consolidation, income and expense items of
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the rates approximating to those ruling when
the transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the
rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity

as foreign exchange reserve (attributed to minority
interests as appropriate). Exchange differences
recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate
financial statements on the translation of long-

term monetary items forming part of the Group’s

net investment in the foreign operation concerned
are reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to be
settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

Defined contribution

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the
services are rendered by the employees.
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4. Summary of significant accounting 4. BEEGSTTHERME -8
policies - Continued

(o) Impairment of assets (other than financial (o) BE (EMEEUIN) BE
assets)
At the end of each reporting period, the Group REREER AEEEHNTIEED
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets RHENEE R FEEMTRETZ
to determine whether there is any indication that EEELBEEIBEBBEIBEIEER
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an RREBEBTNEFEXA e R

impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

e property, plant and equipment; o M WEREE

e intangible assets; and e mILEE R

e interests in associates o MERENFIAER

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair WEERMFT KRB SR (AR FERH
value less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset ERAEFEAEEMRE ZESE) BERE
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, BREE - IEENREES RO EER
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its WE &  REBESHNRERRAX

recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the MEZ B EIREES  IEEMNKREE
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised G LSRR AT B & 58 - 16
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that EAN1E B BR E{E DS B R AR R B
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the TEEREERABEREENRESE
carrying amount that would have been determined BIARTEE o BIEEER DS AR ER A
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset WA o

in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash FREBEIIIEREEHREENXIRESEL
flows expected to be derived from the asset or cash B ESMNMGTARKRIEESR » WA
generating unit, discounted to their present value using HEeBENEEMELREEESRSELS
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market BN ETRES B RIS L 2/
assessments of the time value of money and the risks BT RITBEEHIBEE -

specific to the asset or cash generating unit.
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4. Summary of significant accounting
policies - Continued

(p) Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part

of the cost of those assets. Income earned on
temporary investments of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

(g) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which will probably result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow

of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

(r) Related parties

(1) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.
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4. Summary of significant accounting 4. BEEGSTTHERME -8
policies - Continued

(r) Related parties - Continued ( BAEER — &
(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (2) WfFFE THEM M - BIEFEEA

following conditions apply: SEBE B

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the (i) E%E%ﬁ%éﬁi$%@%ﬂ—%@m
same group (which means that each parent, MERAE (AIEHRF - 6B
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to NGINSAEES M T{EZEEZFE?
the others). HBERE) -

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture iy —EEBAS —EBHNEER
of the other entity (or an associate or joint AIHAEENR (XS —EEA
venture of a member of a group of which the MERBINEBETRKEQF
other entity is a member). MBS N RIHEE AR

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same (i) MEEEHRERA—F=704
third party. NS

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity (iv) —FEJ BERRAFE-FEBNEE
and the other entity is an associate of the NE MR —HEBARZE
third entity. —HEBNEENT

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan (v) ERANSENHEAEEFEH
for the benefit of the employees of the Group EMERENEBN SR LB
or an entity related to the Group. BN T2l -

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by (vi) EEBX(1)FTRLRIAIA L AR
a person identified in (1). S AL RIE A o

(vii) A person identified in (1)(i) has significant (vii) PRI RIATHEES
influence over the entity or is a member of ERX ?Zﬁiﬁ_kﬁux%[m (7%
key management personnel of the entity (or of ERBNSAR) NEEEEE
a parent of the entity). KE o

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of (vii) BER R ASE—F D 2 ERK
which it is a part, provides key management BARMAEBESAERE &
personnel services to the Group or to the RARHEFEERAERE ©

Group’s parent.
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4. Summary of significant accounting
policies - Continued

(r) Related parties — Continued

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

(s) Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit

or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the employee share option reserve within
equity. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into
account by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of each reporting period
so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised
over the vesting period is based on the number of
options that eventually vest. Market vesting conditions
are factored into the fair value of the options granted.
As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied,

a charge is made irrespective of whether the market
vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over
the remaining vesting period.
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4.

(s)

®

Summary of significant accounting
policies - Continued

Share-based payments — Continued

Where equity instruments are granted to persons

other than employees and others providing similar
services, the fair value of goods or services received is
recognised in profit or loss unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets. A corresponding
increase in equity is recognised. For cash-settled share
based payments, a liability is recognised at the fair
value of the goods or services received.

No share option has been granted during the year.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service lines.

Each of the operating segments is managed separately
as each of the segments requires different resources
as well as marketing approaches. All inter-segment
transfers are carried out at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in this report prepared under HKFRS, except that:

()  finance costs;
(i)  share of results of associates;

(i) income tax expense;

(iv) listing expenses; and

(s)
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4. Summary of significant accounting 4. BEEGTTHERME -8
policies - Continued
(t) Segment reporting - Continued (t) oHME2HR - &
(v) corporate income and expenses which are not (v) WIFERT & E D BN ESESHE
directly attributable to the business activities of EHREN R WA RS EERE
any operating segment are not included in arriving BOEHEEEERIT TBEIEENA -

at the operating results of the operating segment.

Segment assets included all assets but interests DHEEREMBEE @ EREE QA
in associates, pledged bank deposits, cash and MR  CEBRTER Re kB4
cash equivalents, amounts due from associates and EEY  RWELARFTENAREE
corporate assets. Corporate assets which are not BRON o N7 FEE{ER] AR & D EPR) XK S B)
directly attributable to the business activities of any BEEEEEYES B EEMA D EBHRF]
operating segment and are not allocated to a segment, BEFEFAREBRI - pIEER
which primarily applies to the Group’s headquarter. IEFTE AL WHIEAE - B3 BN
Segment liabilities included all liabilities but tax BE AR FIER AR A BRI - WIEE
liabilities, borrowings, amount due to a related company EREE D B E BB EZ AR AT
and corporate liabilities. Corporate liabilities which are EOREETADBHNARNEBEEERA
not directly attributable to the business activities of any NEBFEER o

operating segment and are not allocated to a segment,
which primarily applies to the Group’s headquarter.

5. Critical accounting judgements and 5. EEGSFHERMGTTTIEE

key sources of estimation uncertainty MR EERR

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, REARNER @ HRE  E58%
the directors are required to make judgments, estimates RN EMECESNEELARE
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets HEEmEEEL HE - 3T REE - %E
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other Gt RIS B & R E
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions WRAEHBHNREZRE - BEERER
are based on historical experience and other factors Mz E (T -

that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed ZEMFTRAEBEBR T A B AR

on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates B o @EtbEt BRI MAET BT HA
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is MR (WIS EFEZ M) B ET
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the EARE R R BRfE R RR. (B 5T e B AN EA
period of the revision and future periods if the revision R AR REARD) o

affects both current and future periods.
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5.

U]

(ii)

Critical accounting judgements and 5.
key sources of estimation uncertainty
- Continued

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, other key sources estimation
uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within next financial period are as follows:

Net realisable value of inventories (i)

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Inventory value is reduced
when the decision to markdown below cost is made.
Management reassesses the estimations at the
reporting date. The carrying amount of inventories is
disclosed in note 19.

Impairment of trade and other receivables (ii)

The Group’s management assesses the collectibility

of trade and other receivables on a regular basis to
determine if any provision for impairment is necessary.
This estimate is based on, where appropriate, the
evaluation of collectibility and ageing analysis of the
receivables and on the management’s judgment.

A considerable amount of judgment is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these outstandings,
including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. If the financial
conditions of the Group’s debtors were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, provision for impairment may be required.
Management reassesses the provision for impairment
at the reporting date. The carrying amounts of trade
and other receivables are disclosed in notes 20 and 21,
respectively.
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5. Critical accounting judgements and
key sources of estimation uncertainty
- Continued

(iii) Impairment of finance lease receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the Group takes into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. The carrying
amount of finance lease receivables is disclosed in note
18.

(iv) Depreciation

The Group depreciates property, plant and equipment
using straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives, starting from the date on which the assets are
placed into use. The estimated useful lives reflect

the directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the
use of the Group’s property, plant and equipment. The
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is
disclosed in note 14.

(v) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting

date whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group
makes an estimate of the recoverable amount of the
asset. This requires an estimation of the value-in-use of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from

the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value

of those cash flows. A change in the estimated future
cash flows and/or the discount rate applied will result
in an adjustment to the estimated impairment provision
previously made.

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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5.

(vi)

Critical accounting judgements and
key sources of estimation uncertainty
- Continued

Warranty provision

The Group generally offers 2-3 years warranty for the
lighting products during which free warranty service for
the repair and maintenance of parts and components
under normal usage is provided to the customers. The
warranty provision provided during the year, depending
on the product type, was based on the past experience
of the failure rate of the products in the warranty
service period. The carrying amount of warranty
provision is disclosed in note 25.

(vii) Income tax

Determining income tax provisions requires the
Group to make judgment on the tax treatment of
certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions in accordance with
prevailing tax regulations and makes tax provisions
accordingly. In addition, deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. This
requires significant judgment on the tax treatments

of certain transactions and also assessment on the
probability that adequate future taxable profits will be
available for the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
The carrying amount of provision for taxation and
deferred tax liabilities are amounted to approximately
HK$7,635,000 (2015: HK$7,346,000) and HK$118,000
(2015: HK$404,000) as at 31 March 20186.

5. EEGRHE R A A EE

MNERRR - &

RIEERE

AREE—RIRAERBH2EIFRE
H] - HAismE P ERERO TR
HRE R BIEIE R @ &R - FRMIE
W RERRIIR T E R EVIRE m i
TRIE AR5 BRI B A TR U IR R AR BR AT B o
RIEBBOREENRME25PKE -

(vii) FTBH

EEMEHBEGTEAKERE TS
RITR TS BE 3R J7 A E L FIET - REBIRIE
ERNBBHEETATEREINBBE
2. WIEHMEEMTIERE - 1IN B
IEFRTE A EE TR O] AL R AT AR E) A AT HORL
B ;2 B O SR S P R A 5 ) 1 T DA
RoWBEERETRINBEEER
EIERERHE - NENERESAER
AR 3R FE SR R 5 A AR AU EEE R 1B A
EMREE RZE—ARF=ZA=1+—
H BHERERECHESGEZERE
D RI4 AE7,635,0008 7T (ZE—RF :

7,346,000 7T) 118,000 7T (ZZE—

FAF : 404,000/ 7T) ©

—E-RF /T RFFR  EREEIERERERAR

e
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6.

Segment information

For the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessment, financial information relating
to these operations is reporting internally and is
regularly reviewed by the executive directors, being the
chief operating decision maker, based on the following
segments:

(1) Provision of leasing service of lighting systems;
(2) Trading of lighting products; and

(3) Provision of consultancy services on leasing

service of lighting systems (“Consultancy service”).

Segment revenue below represents revenue from
external customers. There were no inter-segment sales
during the year.

7 EBE

REFSERERFEN S - BRSH
IR M B AR RIE T 510 B ER
B2 REBEEREEDIIT

EETEHMEMN

(1) T;EET/itﬁ EH/\H/LX:H HE%
2 RAEMES K

(8) FRMHARER R G & AR AU w4 s AR
(TR MRS ]) °

AT BB ASE R B IR P RIA ©
RAFEER - WESEEHEE -

Leasing
service of Trading
lighting of lighting Consultancy
systems products service Total
REARL RAER
HERH 82 R st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERr TEx FExT FET
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-E—-AE=A
:‘l’ =g .IJZE":E
Revenue from external customers & B 9MEE P EIKA 21,383 78,896 29,789 130,068
Reportable segment profit Z2RDBRH 7,192 31,645 28,496 67,333
Capital expenditure BARHAX 1,162 = = 1,162
Depreciation e 1,661 = = 1,661
As at 31 March 2016 R=E-<E=H
=+—-H
Reportable segment assets AERNIEE 36,151 64,535 22,591 123,277
Reportable segment liabilities AEHRHEaE 7,515 12,271 29 19,815

Synergy Group Holdings International Limited

Annual Report 2015/2016



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R 2R Y

31 March 2016
—T—XRF=A=+—H

6. Segment information - Continued 6. DEPER — &
Leasing
service of Trading
lighting of lighting Consultancy
systems products service Total
RBARS RAER
HERE g5 B R Fohy
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT TER TER TER
Year ended 31 March 2015 HE-ZE-hE=AR
:‘l'_ A JJZE":E
Revenue from external customers R & SMBEF HULA 8,831 74,856 27,807 111,494
Reportable segment profit QEL-F =g 4,334 32,212 27,016 63,562
Capital expenditure VNG 1,647 = = 1,647
Depreciation nE 2,119 = = 2,119
As at 31 March 2015 R=-E-7F=H
=+—-H
Reportable segment assets AE2RDBEE 7,478 49,626 17,305 74,409
Reportable segment liabilities ~ AT 2H/ADBERE 1,719 7,706 27 9,452
The total presented for the Group’s operating segments MAEFERES DI 2 YA EEEEET 2
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as FIMAEBR FEMBEETHHENT
presented as follows:
2016 2015
—REF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Reportable segment profit E/\* Y A 67,333 63,562
Unallocated corporate income EE NEURA 2,007 1,800
Unallocated corporate expenses AP EE’A EllRa (19,694) (10,058)
Listing expenses EFTmER - (15,629)
Finance costs BhE AN (421) (13)
Share of results of associates FE(EE S RN A EE (4,611) (3,604)
Profit before income tax bR PTAS 5 A s A 44,614 36,058
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6. Segment information — Continued

Reportable segment assets

Interests in associates
Pledged bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Due from associates
Other corporate assets

Group assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Borrowings

Provision for taxation
Deferred tax liabilities

Due to a related company
Other corporate liabilities

Group liabilities

AIE2|OEEE
B L R R R RERS
BRI
Be kRS EEY
JE Ui Bt 8 R R R
HiRAIEE
EEEE

AEHNHEaE

{5

HIARE
ELERARR

FE BE = X R FRIR
HibARIAE
SEAE

The Group’s revenue from external customers are
divided into the following geographical areas:

Hong Kong (domiciled)

Japan

Australia

Malaysia

Indonesia

Other overseas regions
(e.g. Singapore, Fiji)

&% (FEfti)

SFN

S
FRAE T
Elfe

HA /5Nt &

(Blgnsronse - 2E%)

2 AR —

n==

2016 2015
—E-XE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAET
123,277 74,409
26,062 11,299
2,500 =
26,576 27,735
8,667 2,180
2,334 3,090
189,416 118,713
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
19,815 9,452
25,497 449
7,635 7,346
118 404

112 120
4,003 4,039
57,180 21,810

REBERBIINEFEPAORAD BT

PR
Revenue from external
customers
RENBEFHBA

2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHExT FHT
51,146 46,877
19,192 34,471
35,999 22,305
3,818 552
10,727 221
9,186 7,068
130,068 111,494
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6.

Segment information - Continued

The Group’s non-current assets are located in Hong
Kong, the place that the Group domiciled.

The geographical location of revenue allocated is
based on the location at which the goods delivered
and services provided. The geographical location of
non-current assets is based on the physical location

of the assets. The Company is an investment holding
company where the Group has majority of its operation
and workforce in Hong Kong, and therefore, Hong
Kong is considered as the Group’s country of domicile
for the purpose of the disclosures as required by
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes
only the following customers with whom transactions
have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenues. Revenue
derived from these customers are as follows:

2 AR —

n==

REBZIFRDEEHDUNES - AN
S B -

WA BRI IR B AR B dn R AR it
RIGH MR BEE - JERE B ER I
NEBNAEENERUER/ERE - NAF
REEERRTR] - MAKBERE N FEH
METIHURES - Bt - iEBHE
HEEAFSH [EEDE ] AERKZH
BmE @ BERRANEENEM -

AREENELPEMEZMERENIE
FAERSBBAEBRBARNT10% ° #Hi%
EXFPESHBANT :

Revenue from external

customers

REIIMBEF KA
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FAT
Customer A** R A 19,192 34,471
Customer B** BB 35,999 22,305
Customer C* BECH 21,385 18,305

s Attributable to segment of Consultancy service ! a5 #H
@ HRAEMNE S DA

i Attributable to segment of trading of lighting products
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7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 7. WA R EAMW A &Kz

GAINS

(a) Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents (@) WA (MAAEEZXE) ERPERE

, 1 ,

the income from trading of lighting products and
provision of leasing and Consultancy service. An

5 RIEHBEE RFEARBAFEA - U
ADHTAE

analysis of revenue is as follows:

2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Leasing service income HERBEUA 21,383 8,831
Trading of lighting products BPAERE S 78,896 74,856
Consultancy service income REARB U A 29,789 27,807
130,068 111,494
(b) An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains is as (b) NEBEEMPARWEHRHDTAT :
follows:
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHExT FHIT
Interest income AMEWA
— from bank deposits — RERITHER 2 -
— charged to amount due from — [A) E LB A BRI AR
an associate 113 -
115 =
Management service income received — #EEEE N B FTIREY
from an associate B ARIFUIA 1,800 1,800
Net foreign exchange gain SN U 25 ) F BB 91 -
Others HAh 174 91
2,180 1,891
8. Finance costs 8. MBI
2016 2015
—E—-REF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHT
Interest expenses for financial liabilities — 3ZEE K ARG RN LB A &
carried at amortised cost: RFIBEFRE
Interest on borrowings wholly repayable 7B T F R EE & 0O & 2 F &
within five years 321 13
Transaction costs on bank borrowings — $R{T& X2 3 SR 100 -
421 13

Synergy Group Holdings International Limited
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9. Profit before income tax 9. BREFEBIANER
Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/ KRR (GTA) A TR EES EABRAT
(crediting): BEEDEH) -
2016 2015
—E-X —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FH&TT
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN & 820 680
Amortisation of intangible assets B A Y
(included in cost of sales) (FFASHERRA) = 578
Cost of inventories recognised as R AT KT ERA
expenses
— Cost of inventories sold - BERFEKAE 51,147 42,232
— Write-off of inventories — TFEME 43 -
51,190 42,232
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BELREBITE
equipment 1,805 2,208
Employee benefit expenses (including B E@F|FE X (B I35E =
directors’ remuneration (note 10)) (ftEE10))
— Salaries and welfare — ¥ kEF 9,512 5,571
- Defined contributions — EEEMHK 330 226
9,842 5,797
Warranty provision, net of reversal RIERHE - FORED 402 326
Bad debts written off =R MR 12 40
Loss on disposal of a joint venture HESENRIZEE = 199
Losses on disposals of property, plant  HEWE - BELEREZEE
and equipment 906 405
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss HNE (W) BIBFE (91) 47
Listing expenses (included in LETER GTATTHAX)
administrative expenses) = 15,629
Minimum lease payments under MPHAE - BEEBFARENL
operating leases in respect of offices, BB THRERENK
warehouses and an office equipment 1,237 1,463
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10. EEHMRERHRSHMA L

10.Directors’ remuneration and five
highest paid individuals

(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) EEHM
Directors’ emoluments are disclosed as follows: EEMESHETENT ¢
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Defined
Fees in kind contributions Total
Eric ol 11
He REWEA EEHN st
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TAT THT THT FTAT
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-ZB—AE
ZA=t-BLEE
Executive directors: HITEE :
Wong Man Fai Mansfield BXE
(“Mr. Mansfield Wong?) ([&x@EE]) - 720 18 738
Lam Arthur (“Mr. Arthur Lam”) M2 ([HREZEE]) - 720 18 738
Non-executive director: HHTEFE -
Lam Chung Ho Alastair AR
(“Mr. Alastair Lam”) (IHBFREE] 180 - 180
Independent non-executive BUHRTESE -
directors:
Chung Koon Yan EER 180 - 180
Cheung Yick Hung Jackie RE 180 - 180
Wong Chi Ying Anthony R 180 - 180
Total st 720 1,440 36 2,196
Year ended 31 March 2015 BE-E-1&
ZA=t-BLEE
Executive directors: HTEE
Mr. Mansfield Wong BXELE - 309 15 324
Mr. Arthur Lam WRELE - 309 15 324
Non-executive director: HHTEFE -
Mr. Alastair Lam MWAREE 4 - 4
Independent non-executive BUHRTES -
directors:
Chung Koon Yan ERE 4 - 4
Cheung Yick Hung Jackie REI 4 - 4
Wong Chi Ying Anthony BTE 4 - 4
Total 4zt 16 618 30 664
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10. Directors’ remuneration and five 10.EEHMR A EHRSHEA
highest paid individuals — Continued T -&
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEEEFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in EAREEREEaTMATERBE2%
the Group, 2 (2015: none) of directors are included. —E-RF:T)EF-
The analysis of the emolument of the remaining MRAFEERTIEBRSFMAL (ZF
3 highest paid individuals for the year (2015: 5), —hF 58 (EENFWHELZTE
whose remuneration fell within the band of nil to 1,000,000 702 f8) B9B & S A E51 a0
HK$1,000,000, are set out below: T
2016 2015
—EB-RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER THT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & - 28 R EYIEF 1,920 2,283
Defined contributions ERA R 54 83
1,974 2,366
(c) During the year, no director or any of the highest paid (c) RAEE  BEEE IR HMA
individuals waived or agreed to waive any emoluments T+ (ZE—RF  \&) hEXRERET
(2015: Nil). No emoluments were paid by the Group A - NEBEFEANER(E(
to the directors or any of the highest paid individuals REARINES K AHEEIEARNERE[M
of the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining KEATNEBNEMEMBGAES
the Group or as compensation for loss of office as a ST REHFMAL (ZZ—HF : &)
director of any member of the Group or of any other X ASHE A DDA S I AR £ [E #5122 B 5X
office in connection with the management of the affairs BRELEE(E o

of any member of the Group (2015: Nil).

11.Income tax expense 1. FrEHiRX
(a) Income tax (@) FB®t
The amount of taxation in the consolidated statement 2HRNGEE2ERERTFHHRIBEEEA

of comprehensive income represents:

2016 2015
—B-RE —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHExT FHIT
Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax B HIRIE — BEFEH
— Tax for the year — FARIE 9,498 9,425
Deferred tax EER I
- Current year —RFE (286) 404
Income tax expense FreHiFA X 9,212 9,829
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2015: B FEF TR I 5T FE SRR 5 Fl IR R
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits. R16.5% (—ZE—FHF 1 16.5%) 51 & -
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11.Income tax expense - Continued 1. FrE8iMx% — &

(a) Income tax - Continued (@) FiBB — &
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled REEMFEHAX T RIZBEGEEEE
to the profit before income tax per the consolidated W RIS HANEFIE RN T -

statement of comprehensive income as follows:

2016 2015
—NE —E-HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHIT
Profit before income tax B FT 15 81 A8 A 44,614 36,058
Tax at statutory tax rate of 16.5% 216.5%HETE R R E AR 7,361 5,950
Effect of share of results of associates  fE(hE# 2 AR EENTE 761 595
Effect of non-deductible expenses TTTDME’%iE’]??’E 1,028 2,789
Effect of temporary differences RREENTE 82 515
Tax concession RIS % (20) (20)
Income tax expense FriS R F 2 9,212 9,829
(b) Deferred tax (b) EZEBIIE
Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and RAFERERANEEHREAEREESH
movements during the year are as follows: HEWT
Accelerated
tax
depreciation
IERBIFITE
HK$’000
FHIT
At 1 April 2014 R-ZZE—MFmA—H =
Charged to profit or loss for the year NEEBE AR 404
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 RZE—RF=—A=+—8BK
—hFMA—H 404
Credited to profit or loss for the year REEBZAEA (286)
At 31 March 2016 RZBE-—RF=ZA=+—H 118
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12.Dividends 12. R 5
No dividend has been paid or declared by the AARRBEZ_E—"F=A=+—H
Company during the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: EFEARESNRERRE (ZF—H
Nil). F:F).
13.Earnings per share 13. 5 REF
2016 2015
—E—-XF —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TET
Earnings R
Profit attributable to the owners of the — ANA B A A B/
Company 35,402 26,229
2016 2015
—E—XF —ET—hF
’000 000
TR TR
Number of shares R E
Weighted average number of shares T ER N SR
(note) (BiEE) 500,000 416,863
Note: The weighted average of 416,863,000 ordinary shares derived Wiz B EEE S —AE=A=+—H1t
for calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended FEEFRERBFEMEFH416,863,000
31 March 2015, includes the weighted average of 85,000,000 B 3E B e IR AR E 18 B 34T R I S 1
ordinary shares issued upon the placing, in addition to the 85,000,000% & 3@A% + HN_415,000,0008% &
415,000,000 ordinary shares, being the number of shares in B (AREE—T—RE-_A=-+—HIE
issue pursuant to the Reorganisation throughout the year ended BEEERESANDRITRMHER) -
31 March 2015.
No diluted earnings per share is presented as the HRAEERERE T RER —_FT—
Group had no potential ordinary shares during the FE=—A=+—HIFERTEEBET
years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015. BIR MU EZLSREERF -
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14.Property, plant and equipment

14.4% - BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Lighting  Construction
improvements equipment systems in progress Total
B £E
HEMEEE  RBLRE BAZG ERIR Fohby
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT THEL TEL TiEx
At 1 April 2014 RZZ2-NEmA—A
Cost AR 751 222 10,961 367 12,301
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (751) (197) (4,946) = (5,894)
Net book amount REFE - 25 6,015 367 6,407
Year ended 31 March 2015 HE_Z-1F=A
=t-HLFE
Opening net book amount FOREFE - 25 6,015 367 6,407
Additions RE 183 51 = 1,647 1,881
Transfer in/{out) g/ (&) - - 1,422 (1,422) -
Reclassification N8 - - (602) (285) (887)
Disposals HE - = (405) = (405)
Depreciation bk (53) (36) (2,119) = (2,208)
Closing net book amount ERERFE 130 40 4,311 307 4788
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 RZZE—RF=f
=+-BR-Z-1fF
mA—H
Cost KA 183 236 9,789 307 10,515
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (53) (196) (5,478) = (5,727)
Net book amount ERFE 130 40 4,311 307 4,788
Year ended 31 March 2016 HE-Z-/EF=R
=t-HLFE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 130 40 4,311 307 4,788
Additions e - 82 = 1,162 1,244
Transfer in/(out) &) /(&) - - 995 (995) =
Reclassification N8 - - (131) (438) (569)
Disposals HE - - (926) (36) (962)
Depreciation bk (92) (52) (1,661) - (1,805)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 38 70 2,588 = 2,696
At 31 March 2016 RZB—R%F
Zh=t-A
Cost KA 183 318 8,427 = 8,928
Accumulated depreciation 2iTE (145) (248) (5,839) - (6,232)
Net book amount REFE 38 70 2,588 - 2,696
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15.Intangible assets 15. B &=
Exclusive
rights
=55
HK$'000
FHT
Cost RS
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015, RZZE—MNFMA—R  ZF—hF=H
1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 =t—H -ZZE—HAEMWA—HBRK
—E—ARE=A=+—H 3,851
Accumulated amortisation RETE#e
At 1 April 2014 R-ZZE—WNFMA—H 3,273
Amortisation By 578
At 31 March 2015, 1 April 2015 and RZEBE—RAF=A=+—08"
31 March 2016 —E-RFNHA—HK
—E-R"F=A=+—H 3,851
Net carrying amount BREFE
At 31 March 2016 RZBE-—RF=ZA=+—H -
At 31 March 2015 RZZE-—RF=A=+—H -
The Group’s intangible assets represented the exclusive NEENBEFEEREHAETFREES
rights to use some technical know-how of the lighting MR ITA S E AR IR E G EENEE
products and amortisation is provided on a straight-line Mt B F B B s -
basis over the estimated useful lives of 5 years.
16.Interests in joint ventures 16. REE N AR
During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group REBE_Z-—AF=A=+—HIF
has disposed of its entire investment in Synergy - AREBCAZ—REEAREH
Lighting (Mexico) Limited and its subsidiary, LNG & E 7 Synergy Lighting (Mexico)
Synergy S.A. DE C.V., to another joint venture partner Limited 5 & M;]LEQETLNG Synergy S-\A-
at a consideration of HK$1. The Group recognised DE‘Q-V-Z%SMX\Q RERIET - R
loss on disposal of a joint venture of approximately %E{é A& .E/\jﬁi;j\Méi A
HK$199,000 (note 9) during the year ended 31 March S EIJJ:EJ*EE,: Hj E6EDALZE

845
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16.

17.

Interests in joint ventures -
Continued

The aggregate summarised financial information of the
joint ventures that are not individually material extracted
from management accounts for the year ended 31
March 2015 prepared in accordance with HKFRS is set
out below:

Aggregate carrying amount of interests in immaterial joint 72 ==

ventures as at 31 March 2015

Aggregate amounts of the share of immaterial joint
ventures during the year ended 31 March 2015:

Loss from continuing operations

Post-tax profit or loss from discontinued operations
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

The Group has discontinued recognition its share of
losses of joint ventures. The amounts of unrecognised
share of losses, both for the year ended 31 March
2015 and cumulatively, are as follows:

Unrecognised share of losses of joint ventures
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Accumulated unrecognised share of losses of
joint ventures as at 31 March 2015

Interests in associates

Share of net assets G EEFE
Goodwill (SRS

16. 04 # A AW — &

FAsk B ARBE B M 5 3RS 2R A P AR &R
ET-RAF-A=tHILFEER
fRE YA SHERIEZ WA E QAU
BROERBIZEIT

HK$’000
FER
—RAF=A=+—H
RIEEESERRERH
IREEARE =
HK$’000
FERT
HE=—ZT—AF=—A=+—HL
FERGIFEZESE QTN
B
RERFEKEEEBHNEE (26)
REKIEEEXEBOBRTIEER -
Hib 2B A -
ZHEUALREE (26)

AEBECRILER LA E R RRE
B-BE_T-AF=-A=t—BLF
ERZARERRIEBENSELT

HK$’000
FET
BHE-ZT-—RF=A=+—AH1L
FERERELEE ARN
BB 26
RZZE—RhF=A=+—H
RETRERIENS
BERFRER -
17. B E N RN ER
2016 2015
—NE —RhF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
9,841 11,299
16,221 =
26,062 11,299
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17.REE NN ER — &

Particulars of the associates, which are accounted for RErE B I TRk P A A A BR AV B
ENRIFFIBIT

17.Interests in associates — Continued

using the equity method in the consolidated financial

statements, are as follows:

Issued and fully

Percentage of
equity interest

Place and date of paid up share attributable to
Name of companies incorporation capital the Company Principal activities
BREREQAN

AR LB EMRCEHRASE EERTRERRE RAEZASN TEEXR

Synergy Cooling Management British Virgin Islands United States 36.59% Investment holding
Limited (“Synergy Cooling”) (“BVI") Dollar (‘US$")  (2015: 27.17%)

1 April 2011 18,400

Synergy Cooling Management EBERLEE 18,4003 T 36.59% EER

Limited (' Synergy CoolingJ ) ([EBRLES]) (1%l (ZZ—n%F:
—2——5MA—H 27.17%)

Synergy Cooling Management Hong Kong HKS$1 36.59% Leasing and maintenance
(H.K.) Limited 21 April 2011 (2015: 27.17%)  services of cooling
(“Synergy Cooling HK”) systems

ERZERAEE (BE) BRAA BB 1787 36.59% ZERZHNEE
(DEREZERER]) —T——f (Z2-0%F: REEBRS

mA=+—H 27.17%)

Synergy Cooling Management BVI US$100 36.59% Investment holding

(Malaysia) Limited 11 November 2013 (2015: 27.17%)
BERLRES 100%7T 36.59% HEER

—T-=F (ZF—hF:

+—A+t—A 27.17%)

Synergy ESCO (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.  Malaysia Malaysian Ringgit 36.59% Provision of energy
(“Synergy ESCO (Malaysia)”) 17 April 2014 (“BRM”) 500,000 (2015: 27.17%)  management systems

(2015: RM200,000) solutions

Synergy ESCO (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.  HRFE T 500,000% & 36.59% REEFERRZGBATR

(I'Synergy ESCO (Malaysia) ) —F 2E([4%]) (ZZ—8fF:
MA++AH (ZZ—-1%: 27.17%)
200,0009%)
Synergy Cooling ESCO (HK) Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 36.59% Provision of energy
11 June 2014 (2015: 27.17%)  management systems
solutions
BE 1787 36.59% RERREBZGMANTER

—mE (ZZ—hF:
~AT—H 27.17%)

Fﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%@ji@ﬁ%i?ﬁ’&ﬁj SR
BIRE -

All associates are unlisted corporate entities whose
quoted market price is not available. BHEHM

Synergy Cooling is the holding company of other Synergy Cooling &7~ 5 B E 5 & A &)
associates of the Group (collectively referred to as 2R A E] (#1784 [ Synergy Cooling
“Synergy Cooling Group”). @) -
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17.Interests in associates — Continued

The summarised financial information of Synergy
Cooling Group extracted from management accounts

prepared in accordance with HKFRS is set out below:

17. REBE R R EDR — &

kA REB BV SRS ERMRHE
HEER B HSynergy Cooling&= BIH BT 75 &
EHEZHF 0T

2016 2015

—E-RE —hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FET

Non-current assets ERMEEE 54,138 60,228

Current assets BN EE 6,866 5,048

Current liabilities mEaE (26,079) (20,059)

Non-current liabilities EMBBE (6,793) (3,636)

2016 2015

—AE — R4

HK$’000 HK$’000

FiEx FET

Revenue WA 9,616 6,060

Loss from continuing operations RERHES S EEHEE (13,257) (13,263)
Post-tax profit or loss from discontinued 3 B 4 |F & & £ BB T 12183

operation - _

Other comprehensive income Hih2m WA (192) 19

Total comprehensive income ZHEWRA LR (13,449) (13,244)

Dividends received from Synergy B W Synergy Cooling%e B & i%
& _ _

Cooling Group

Reconciliation to the Group’s interests in associates as

at reporting dates:

Net assets of Synergy Cooling Group

Percentage of equity interest attributable

to the Group

The Group’s share of Synergy Cooling
Group’s net assets

Other reconciliation items

Share of net assets
Goodwill

Carrying amount of the Group’s interests 7N 5 B A Bt &

in associates

iy

2016 2015
—®-XE —Z—RfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
Synergy Cooling&E @ /)
BEFE 28,132 41,581
FERAEENRAERA DL
36.59% 27.17%
N £ E FE {5 Synergy Cooling%e
B r & EFE 10,294 11,299
H b ¥ ERIEE (453)
EREEFE 9,841 11,299
5k 16,221 -
N R)ERMIREE
26,062 11,299

, 1 ,,
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18.Finance lease receivables 18. Bl mEHERIE
The Group provides financial leasing service of lighting AEBRBESRUBRAERNRERE
products in Hong Kong. The Group’s finance lease IR - REEREKRFERERIBHT

receivables are as follows:

Present values of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments
REHREMNR REAEARRE
2016 2015 2016 2015

—E-xE —ET-HF CZE-R"E —T—1F%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TER TR TET FET
Within one year —EL R 4,046 1,234 2,510 851
In the second to fifth years, E-RERE
inclusive (BEERHRE) 12,007 994 8,770 811
More than five years BBAF 3,779 - 3,464 -
19,832 2,228 14,744 1,662
Less: Unearned finance lease W ABEIEE n/a n/a
income AEUWA (5,088) (566) TER NEH
Present value of minimum lease &K E(Z3EE
payments 14,744 1,662 14,744 1,662
Analysed for reporting purposes &t 2 4§ B # 1 /£
as: pavax)is NN
- Current assets — AR 2,510 851
- Non-current assets —ERFEE 12,234 811
14,744 1,662
The effective interest rates of the Group’s finance leases AEBERERENERFENTFF6%
are ranging from 6% to 221% per annum (2015: 6% to B2221% (ZE—HF : BF6%ET4%)
74% per annum). There are no unguaranteed residual ZE - MEHNET 2 EEMBEEER
values of assets under finance leases. Finance lease BR{E o EUNELE H EFIBLARBAAE mE
receivables are secured over the lighting products. No BH -HE_ZT—RNER_ZT—HF=
contingent rent arrangements were made during the A=T—HBLEFEIEELFIAEES L
years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015. B o
As at 31 March 2016, included in the Group’s finance RZE—RF=A=1+—8  ££EH
lease receivables is the trading amount due from an JE WS & FR & IR B IR U E A R
associate, Synergy ESCO (Malaysia), of approximately Synergy ESCO (Malaysia)H) & 5 BR 3K 47
HK$2,952,000 (2015: Nil). 2,952,000 L(ZE—HF : &) -
Included in finance lease receivables are the following FEW R E R EIEE R EE T 5 AT RE
amounts denominated in currencies other than the BEDIMYE ST EN IR
functional currency:
2016 2015
ZE-RF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
RM °H 2,952 -
Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR”) Efeia (TENEE)) 10,223 =
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19.Inventories 19.78
2016 2015
—E-XRF —T—hfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Finished goods RIBK Gh 13,721 195
20.Trade receivables 20. B 5 FEBR X
2016 2015
—E-XRF —E—NhfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Trade receivables, net B 5 R ARFRE 84,941 58,550
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are REHEBEAERFHESEFAEER
mainly on credit. The credit period is ranging from cash T FEHRNFEENIREI1S80R 2
on delivery to 180 days. The directors consider that Mo EX2RE ARZFEBRRNEEY
the fair values of trade receivables are not materially HIMEIHRHARR 8058 - WUE S BRI
different from their carrying amounts because these ANFEEHREOBETESEAER -
balances have short maturity periods on their inception.
Based on invoices date, ageing analysis of the Group’s BEEZEAE  A5EB S EWERD
trade receivables is as follows: BRER DTN -
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZE—NfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
0 to 30 days 0%30H 25,428 27,223
31 to 90 days 31290H 8,722 8,239
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 15,159 21,071
181 to 365 days 181£365H 25,682 40
Over 365 days Bidm365H 9,950 1,977
84,941 58,550
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20.Trade receivables - Continued 20.BEZ EWNERRX — &
Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that ARE BN RBERNE 5 EBER K IRER
are not impaired is as follows: DI -
2016 2015
AL —T—hfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Neither past due nor impaired KRR RRE 29,466 25,066
1 to 30 days past due #HAI1 =308 6,025 12,244
31 to 90 days past due BHEI31 E90H 7,243 8,402
91 to 180 days past due #HI91 £ 180H 10,730 10,821
181 to 365 days past due #EA181%2365H 28,443 40
Over 365 days past due #EAB65 A A £ 3,034 1,977
84,941 58,550
At each reporting date, the Group’s trade receivables REREBE - NEENE 5 EUKERER
are individually determined for impairment testing. At ZEMETRENR - RZT—RF=
31 March 2016, the Group’s trade receivables that A=+—H  xEENKRBHMRRBE
were neither past due nor impaired for whom there was H'E 5 MR KT BRI BN B 40 A0
no recent history of default. The Group’s management B AEBERBERE  FAEEERE
considers that trade receivables that were past due BB E B ERRER B 2 e R
but not impaired under review are of good credit BAERINEESZ - EXAEEEAT
quality. When the Group is satisfied that recovery of AA LB B 2 IR R - R A
trade receivables is remote, the amount considered Ao e e EZEE FRIER
irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables KM - FN - AEECETESE
directly. During the year, the Group has determined W BR 4 /A12,00008 7L (ZT—F4F :
trade receivables of approximately HK$12,000 (2015: 40,0007 7T) (BI7E9) A7 ATk Bl K il
HK$40,000) (note 9) as irrecoverable and written off. 8K ©
Included in the Group’s trade receivables are amounts REEE Z KRR E 215 E KW E
due from two (2015: two) related companies, in ZT—RF : MAE) BEARINIE
which Mr. Alastair Lam’s close relatives are the major (MEREENERAZEARNEER
shareholders and the key management personnel, with RREBEEEBAR) RZE—XRF=H
aggregate receivables, of approximately HK$232,000 =+—08 - BEREWERREFELR232,000
as at 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$294,000). The credit B (ZE—FRF : 294,00087T) © 12
terms offered to those related companies are ranging HIZEEERRNEEANTREE
from cash on delivery to 30 days. The maximum RNEZEI08 2/ o 4 R RE U EZ R
amount due from these two related companies during NEIM =2 FEERD R4 R354,0007
the year, individually amounted to approximately 7T} 155,000/ 7T °

HK$354,000 and HK$155,000.
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20.Trade receivables - Continued 20.EZENERAX — &
As at 31 March 2016, included in the Group’s trade RZBE—R"F=ZA=+—10 ' £5£E
receivables is the trading amount due from an SRR E P BB RGN R
associate, Synergy ESCO (Malaysia), of approximately Synergy ESCO (Malaysia)#)'& 5 B8R 3k
HK$495,000 (2015: HK$3,000). The credit term offered #9495,000/8 7T (ZF—HF : 3,000/&
to Synergy ESCO (Malaysia) is ranging from cash on JC) ° 4 T Synergy ESCO (Malaysia)f)1=
delivery to 30 days. The maximum amount due from EHANTRERR=EI0R - FAE
Synergy ESCO (Malaysia) during the year amounted to W Synergy ESCO (Malaysia) 18 H) £ 5
approximately HK$495,000. S84 B495,0008 7T °
Included in trade receivables are the following amounts B RKESRE P BIE T EE
denominated in currencies other than the functional AN EBEHER S
currency:
2016 2015
—EB—XREF —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
USs$ ETT 54,876 39,326
RM *H 495 -
IDR e’ 505 -
21.Deposits, prepayments and other
posits, prepay 21,58  FIAR LR
receilvaples :55-,\15\
2016 2015
—REF —T—hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
Deposits oA 7,640 9,489
Prepayments TE T FRIE 1,869 132
Other receivables Hofth FE Y FRIE = 2,527
9,509 12,148
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22.Due from/to associates/a related
company

(a)

(o)

Amounts due from associates of approximately
HK$8,667,000 as at 31 March 2016 (2015:
HK$2,180,000) represented the net non-trading
outstanding balances with Synergy Cooling Group.
As at 31 March 2016, included in the amounts
due from associates is the advance to Synergy
Cooling HK of approximately HK$4,410,000 which
is unsecured, interest-bearing at 5.0% per annum
and repayable on demand. As at 31 March 2016,
the remaining balances with Synergy Cooling
Group are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

Amount due to a related company of HK$112,000
as at 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$120,000)
represented the outstanding payables of computer
software consultancy service to a related company
as detailed in note 32(a)(v), wholly owned by Mr.
Mansfield Wong. The balance was unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

23.Pledged bank deposits/cash and
cash equivalents

22. B NEE DR BED

7
(a)

IR

R-E—RF=ZA=+—8 " Bl
& N A1 B 49 58,667,000/ 7T
—ZT—F4 : 2,180,000/ 7T)
BN Synergy Cooling% & #)3F &
SRBEEHRFE N _T—RF
ZA=+—8  ERELERARZIA
BIEMEREERAEBRENBRLY
4,410,000/ 7T » JHERIF L FF
E5.0%T B REREREE - K=
T—XRF=A=+—H8 ' HSynergy
Cooling % B H) T R 4 58 A EE 3K
RERERERERE -

R-E—RFE=ZA=+—8 - EfR
RAE N RIFIAA112,0008 7T (= F
— R : 120,000 7T) BIAKBER
ENREAR (RRARBENEL
E2ERE) BTGB AR K
T8 - B RN FES2()(v) © 2SR
BEER  RENMREREE -

23.BHRTER HEKE

EEEY

2016 2015

—E—XF —ET—hF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET T

Cash and bank balances e RIRTTA S 29,076 27,735
Less: Pledged bank deposits (note) W EERRITERR (FEE) (2,500) -
Cash and cash equivalents HERIRNESZEEY 26,576 27,735

BisE : BEMRITHERE M —FRITER - UER
RPAREEMORITREMER (HE26) -

Note: Pledged bank deposits have been pledged to a bank as
securities for banking facilities granted to the Group (note 26).
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23. EIFRITHER B RR
TEEY &
RERBEEEMRIETIAEEE
AN BB ETHE R FRIE -

23.Pledged bank deposits/cash and
cash equivalents - Continued
Included in cash and cash equivalents are the following

amounts denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency:

2016 2015

—F-XE C—FT-I1F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHETT

us$ ETT 3 41

AEENRITREREREBRITER
T 2R B B ) R BRI B, ©

The Group’s cash at banks earns interest at floating
rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

24.Trade payables 24. B 5 BT ERFX
Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables is as AEBNE ZEMNERZFAERRITET
follows:

2016 2015

—F-x"f ZT-hF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

0 to 30 days 0&30H 10,748 6,044
31 to 90 days 31£290H 2,751 356
91 to 180 days 91£180H 2,448 -
Over 180 days Hi@180H 376 3
16,323 6,403

AREBARETVETRE - WE2IH
o ANRSER TFI0RNEER -

The Group made purchase with various manners,
operating on cash on delivery, payment in advance
terms, or granted with credit term of 30 days.

As at 31 March 2016, included in the Group’s trade R-ZB—XRFE=A=+—"H KA&EBZ
payables is the trading amount due to an associate, B SR FIEREREMNEE A RE/RT
Synergy Cooling HK, of approximately HK$901,000 FAEE 2 BN E B IRFKAI901,00078 7T
(2015: Nil). (ZZE—hF 1 FT)o
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24.Trade payables — Continued 2. B ENERRK — &
Included in trade payables are the following amounts B HRNERERBIE TSGR
denominated in currencies other than the functional AN BT ER S -
currency:
2016 2015
—E—RF —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
us$ £ 278 -
Renminbi (“RMB”) ARE (TARE]) 15,096 4,306
25.Accruals, other payables and 25.FBTER - HtBENRIER
deposits received 2izE
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Current liabilities: MEALE
Accruals =t &M 2,808 1,732
Other payables H b fE (508 2,406 2,892
Warranty provision (note) RIEBE (M) 1,068 917
Deposits received Bliizs 1,066 1,249
7,348 6,790
Non-current liabilities: FERBELE
Deposits received Blizé 147 298
Note: BsE
The movements in the warranty provision are as follows: RIEBBEOHEFHWT -
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FT
At beginning of the year REF 917 904
Provision for the year FEREAE 575 417
Unused amounts reversed BRARERASRE (173) 91)
Amounts utilised EBAeE (251) (313)
At end of the year RERXR 1,068 917
The Group records its warranty liability at the time of sales rendered AEEMPREHERFRB G AR REER
based on estimated costs. Warranty claims are reasonably predictable f o RIEBRABIBBENRERERSEIEA -
based on historical failure rate information. The warranty provision is RIEBBESEFEN  URBEZBETEE RIR
reviewed yearly to verify it properly reflects the outstanding obligation EERIRFIBRE T -

over the warranty period.

—E-RE—FANEFEH ENEEERERERAT 121



Notes to the Financial Statements

B TS ER AR MY RE

31 March 2016
—ZT—XRF=A=+—H

25.Accruals, other payables and 25.FB5t &M - ﬁﬂﬂ?ﬁ RIE K
deposits received - Continued eWEe - &
Included in accruals and other payables are the EAERAREMEMNRRERBIETT
following amounts denominated in currencies other IAThREEBE AN B ETER S5 ¢

than the functional currency:

2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—hEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHxT FET
RMB AR - 563
RM Ea-1 355 -
IDR e’ 723 =
. =
26.Borrowings 26. &
2016 2015
—RE —E—AF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FHBxT FH&T
Secured bank loans: BIRIFRITER -
Amounts repayable within one year B —&E N{E & /) FRIE (a)(iv) 15,000 -
Unsecured bank loans: EIMIRIRITE R
Amounts repayable within one year 7B —F RNEEHNIE (a)(v) 1,942 -
Amounts repayable after one year B —E&EERRIE
but contain a repayable on 15%75//\5’\%*57155&
demand clause 2R (@lv) 8,218 -
Unsecured other loan: EIEREMER
Amounts repayable within one year B —EAEBHRIE (a)(ii) 120 112
Current liabilities mENARE 25,280 112
Unsecured other loan: EIMPEMER
Amounts repayable in second to  BERE -_EHRHLE
fifth year 1838 B RIH (a)(ii) 217 337
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 217 337
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- - j:t
26.Borrowings — Continued 26. 15 — &
Notes: FsE
(a) Bank loans and other loan (a) HRITERRHEMER
()  The Group entered into bank loan agreements with banks 0] AEBBBITEIRITER B - AT
which give the banks the right at their sole discretion to RITE R EMNIE R ERERZ KB
demand immediate repayment at any time irrespective B MTARAEBREEBITMEER
of whether the Group has met the scheduled repayment BfE -
obligations.
(i)  During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group obtained iy REBEEZZT—AF=A=+—HLHF
a loan from an independent third party amounting to B AEEEBYE=HESER
HK$485,000. 485,000/ 7T °
(i) As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s interest-bearing iy M-T—ARE=ZA=+—10 ' A&£BEx
borrowings bore effective interest rate ranging from 2.74% HEEREBN T2.74%E6.49% %
t0 6.49% per annum (2015: 5.25% to 6.49%). MERENE (ZT—HF | 5.25%%
6.49%) °
(iv)  As at 31 March 2016, the bank loans are secured by the ivy RZZT—R"F=A=+—H  BITER
pledge of bank deposits of approximately HK$2,500,000 DAE%mﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%m’qzwo,ooo%ﬁ (:
(2015: Nil) (note 23). The bank loans are also secured T—RF | T) (EEM (MsE28) -
by corporate guarantees by the Company and Synergy TTERINAR QB REREIRBRIZ E’]
Worldwide. RIFERIEIER
(v The bank loans are under corporate guarantee offered by (v)  SRITERTIAARRARHRER A RIERE
the Company. A o
(vi)  The Group’s banking facilities are amounting to (vi) A&z RITRYE A45,000,0004 70
HK$45,000,000 (2015: Nil), of which HK$25,300,000 have (ZZ—h4%F : £) - EF25,300,000
been utilised at 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil). BITER-ZE—"F=A=+—H%H
(ZZE—R&F 1 T) -
Based on the schedule repayment dates set out in the bank loan RIBRITE R R LM E KB EFTH OB EER
and other loan agreements, the borrowings are repayable as HE - [EFEEERT -
follows:
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FaT FHT
Within one year —FR 17,062 112
In the second year F_F 2,129 120
In the third to fifth year EFE=FFRF 6,306 217
25,497 449
(b) As at 31 March 2016, approximately HK$51,000 (2015: b) RZZT—XRF=A=+—0  xEEZE
HK$21,000) of the Group’s corporate credit cards limit of 300,000/ 7T (ZZF—HF : 50,00087T) #Y
HK$300,000 (2015: HK$50,000) had been utilised. As at 31 PERER -Fﬁﬁgﬁaibﬁﬁmm oooi%fn (==—
March 2015, the corporate credit cards are guaranteed by Mr. A : 21,00087T) © —RE=RA=+
Alastair Lam. The personal guarantee by Mr. Alastair Lam was =[E o m%f;ﬁﬂ%ﬁaﬂ&‘f\%ﬁiﬁé‘ﬁ MER
released during the year. SEMEARRERFRRER
—RE /T REER EHEEEREARERAR
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27.Share capital 27. R 7R
Number of
shares Amount
REE S8
Notes HK$’'000
FisE TAT
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares Tk
At 1 April 2014 RZE—HFEMHHA—H
— ordinary shares, of HK$1 each —EER BREE1ET (9 380,000 380
Share sub-division upon BHEESFRH
Reorganisation (b) 37,620,000 -
Increase in authorised share capital EAARIE A E A
upon Reorganisation (b) 49,962,000,000 499,620
At 31 March 2015, 1 April 2015 RZE—RE=A=+—H"
and 31 March 2016 —E-hEMNA-BR
—E-XE=A=1+—H 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRHE
At 1 April 2014 R-E—NFEMA—H (@ 100 -
Share sub-division upon ERRSFRN
Reorganisation (b) 9,900 =
Subtotal INEt 10,000 =
Issue of shares upon Reorganisation — E#HRE 31T () 414,990,000 4,150
Issue of shares by placing FRREHTRG (d) 85,000,000 850
At 31 March 2015, 1 April 2015 R-_E—R&F=A=+—H"
and 31 March 2016 “E-RFMNA-ARK
—E-XE=A=+—H 500,000,000 5,000
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27.Share capital - Continued

Notes:

(@)

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 14
December 2011. The authorised share capital as at 1 April 2014
amounting to HK$380,000 represented 380,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each authorised on its incorporation on 14 December
2011. On the same day, an aggregate of 100 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each were issued and allotted nil-paid. The issued share
capital as at 1 April 2014 was held by Mr. Alastair Lam.

On 5 March 2015, the sole shareholder of the Company before
the Reorganisation, Mr. Alastair Lam, passed a resolution to
approve the sub-division of all the ordinary shares of HK$1

each in the issued and unissued share capital of the Company
into 100 shares. As a result, the authorised share capital of

the Company became HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each. On the same day, the authorised share
capital of the Company was also increased from HK$380,000
divided into 38,000,000 shares to HK$500,000,000 divided into
50,000,000,000 shares by creation of additional 49,962,000,000
shares.

Pursuant to the reorganisation agreement entered on 5 March
2015, an aggregate of 10,000 nil-paid ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the Company was credited as fully-paid as
par held by Mr. Alastair Lam; and 414,990,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each credited as fully-paid, totally of approximately
HK$4,150,000, in consideration of and exchange for the
acquisition by the Company of the entire issued share capital of
Synergy Worldwide.

The Company’s shares were listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 24 March 2015 and 85,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company were issued at HK$0.5 per share
by way of placing.

AARR=ZE——F+-A+TOAEHSHS
MK - R=Z—mEmA— BRAERA
£380,000/ 7T - MER=Z—F+=A+
PO B 5 A S B A E #9380,0004% F AR EIE 1
BITH LA - FAB - & X100 FREE 1
T2 E AR AR BAR T BT R BB o
—T-MENA—HZEEITRABAMKERE
ERA -

R-ZZE—RAF=AARA ' ARREHAIZMHE
—REMEREERIBRER - UHEAR
RIB BT RABITRAT A GREETST
2 EBBRD I AI100MAR D - Bt - AAFH
JETE R A K £380,0007 7T + 9 A38,000,000
AR AR E0.01B TG - AR - ARA
R TE B AN 1A 8 5% KB HN9,962,000,0004%
B3+ 7R 380,0005 7T (% 438,000,000
A% 15 ) # hnE500,000,0005 7T (55
50,000,000,000/% %17 ) °

BER-_Z—RAF=ARAF L2 EMRHH
RAF R EMERILERFE S 10,0005
AR E0.018 7T 2 R ARFK L BAR A BRFI1E
BRI &%414,990,0008% F B {E0.01
BT LBRARIIER R - BB A
4,150,000/ 7T © ERRE RIA R AUE
FERLIRBRZ 2R BITIRA ©

RABZBHR-E—hE= A=+ B R
RATRIFER £ - BB BEE AN AFR0.5
78 T8 1T A2 5]85,000,0000% & A% E{&0.01
BT Lk

—E-RF/FAEEH

TEREE BB AR AR
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28.Reserves

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves are
as set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

Share premium

The share premium account of the Group represents
the excess of the proceeds received over the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued.

Capital reserves

Capital reserves represent the capital contributions
made by a shareholder of Synergy Worldwide before
Reorganisation.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
Reorganisation and represented the difference between
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
pursuant to the Reorganisation and the nominal value
of the aggregate share capital and the share premium
of a subsidiary.

28. f#1E

AEBEEZ EDFBERAGAREE
B -

WA %8
AREE 2 B s B iR B WP 1S SRR
HARRE TR EE 2 25

XA

BAEERER BRI — B BRR
BEHEAELREE

BOHEE
AEEMSHHEREREAMES @ W5
ARRBRBEAD BT EELN

JEEPNGIESE NIRRT S vipi e = AT E=S
B e
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28.Reserves - Continued 28.f#1E — &
Company AAFE
Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
R4 1E BRR 2 ER @st

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR THT TET

(note)

(B5E)
At 1 April 2014 RZZE-MEMA—AH - = = =
Issue of shares upon Reorganisation BB ZEITRD

(note 27(c)) (BzE27 (c)) - 3,236 = 3,236
Placing of new shares BREMRG (27 (d)

(note 27(d)) 41,650 - - 41,650
Share issue expenses BinBITR Y (6,901) = = (6,901)
Loss for the year and total FABERFAZEAKA

comprehensive income

for the year - - (203) (203)
At 31 March 2015 and R-ZE-RF=A=+—H

1 April 2015 k=Z-—RFEWNA—H 34,749 3,236 (203) 37,782
Loss for the year and total FREBERFRNZEZKRA

comprehensive income

for the year - - (4,133) (4,133)
At 31 March 2016 R-Z—A&=A=+-H 34,749 3,236 (4,336) 33,649
Note: BiEE -

The contributed surplus of the Company represented the difference RARZ EBBBIEFKE—HNBRRNEEF
between the net asset value of the subsidiary acquired and the nominal BERERESEABEILEEIRBAREEFENAE
value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof NAIEBITRAAEZ BHZEE -

pursuant to the Reorganisation.
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29.Operating lease arrangement

(a) As lessor

As at 31 March 2016, future minimum lease rental
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases of
the Group in respect of lighting systems are as follows:

Within one year —F IR
Within second to fifth year F_EERF

The Group leases lighting systems under operating
lease. The leases run for average initial period of 3
years. None of these leases includes any contingent
rentals.

The Group has signed leasing contracts with a
customer, where both parties authorised and agreed
that the Group would place a security deposit of
approximately HK$150,000 (the “Security Deposit”) in
a bank (the “Security Bank”) in favour of the customer,
the customer shall have the right and sole discretion
to demand the Security Bank an amount equal to any
cost, loss or damage suffered by itself as the direct or
indirect result of any breach of the leasing arrangement
by the Group. As at 31 March 2016, the Security
Deposit has not yet made by the Group.

(b) As lessee

As at 31 March 2016, future minimum rental payables
under non-cancellable operating lease of the Group in
respect of offices, warehouses and an office equipment
are as follows:

Within one year —FUR
Within second to fifth year E_ZERF

The Group leases offices, warehouses and an office
equipment under operating leases. The leases run
for an initial period of 1 to 5 years, with options to
renew the lease terms upon expiry when all terms
are re-negotiated. None of these leases includes any
contingent rentals.

(@)

(b)

9. 8EMELH
EREBEA

RZE—XRF=ZA=+—8" $;ﬁ<ﬁ
FRREA R AT RH S EHATE T H

FRERRZELSHOT
2016 2015
—RE —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHxT FHET
1,850 4,452
501 2,032
2,351 6,484

AEBERBELEROLERARS - B
H PR A3E - ZFHOMER
BEEARAEE -

ZF%EE@—%@}EETYLEEE\E d
Bt - EFEEERRERNEEGL
150,000 T2 REE ([RFES ) L/(EZ
P AZm ATFHR—MEIRIT ([RFIR
11  ZBEPHE BRI ZEMIBEEK
REBRITEEEANSBEE K HEEE
REMBEEZHEMRZHERMKR « B
KFBEENRELFE R_ZT—RF=
A=+—8  AEBEHNEEDRES -

EBABEA

RZE—XRE=ZA=+—08  x&£BHE
BAPAE « BENPARERNT ] B
LETHLNE TR RENZERSDOT

2016 2015
=F-—R"E —TA1F
HK$°000 HK$’000
T TET
613 1,035

25 430

638 1,465

AEBRBEKEHENVERMRAE - BB
KRk - MOME SRR =55
RO MY BRMAE RS EREE
BB ZSHEFH - 2FHOBER
BEEMHAEE -
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30. A B) B AR R 3%

30. Statement of financial position of the

Company
2016 2015
ZB-XF —T—AF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R B AR RIRE 7,386 7,386
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables Tt FRIR K H A FE W kIR 335 2,405
Due from subsidiaries R NGIE ¢ 31,773 33,192
32,108 35,597
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R H AN IR 845 201
Net current assets RBEETEE 31,263 35,396
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERARBAER 38,649 42,782
Net assets BEEFE 38,649 42,782
EQUITY xR
Equity attributable to the AATEE AELER
owners of the Company
Share capital B 5,000 5,000
Reserves =g 33,649 37,782
Total equity LSRR 38,649 42,782

On behalf of the Board RERESE
Wong Man Fai Mansfield Lam Arthur
BN E MEE
Director Director
- EF

—T-RF T FER

ERE KB BR AR AR
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31.Interests in subsidiaries 3. R B AR 2R
Details of subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016 are as NRZE—ARNF=A=1+—HHKBAT
follows: HEWT
Particulars of issued Attributable

Place and date of

and fully paid up

equity interest held

Principal place of

Company name incorporation share capital by the Company Principal activities operation
BEREAAR
ARER AR AR L st B K B R ERITRBERAFEE HRAER TEEH TEEXNH
Direct Indirect
HE &
Synergy Worldwide BVI US$22,608 100% - Investment holding Hong Kong
8 August 2008
ERRI RBRAHE 22,608% 7T REER B
—ZZN\ENANR
Synergy Lighting Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Leasing, consultancy Hong Kong
3 December 2008 services and trading
of lighting products
BB ARAR & 100/ 7T HE AR L RA &t
“ZT\G+=ZF=H EnBS
32.Related party transactions N.BELERS
(a) Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial (a) BRABIBImMETREMEDETEEEN &R
statements, the Group had the following material SERFANERNEB SIS T ¢
related party transactions during the year:
2016 2015
—~E —hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt aE FHET FET
Leasing service income from KEBEAANHEERS
related companies WA (i) 1,328 1,921
Leasing service income from an RE SRR NHEE RS
associate WA (i) 3,818 -
Sales to related companies HETEEANT (iif) 5 20
Sales to an associate HE T —RHEE Q) (iv) - 552
Computer software consultancy Eﬁ RRE A B E RSB
service fees paid to a related RAREE
company (v) 336 336
Rental expenses paid to a BfN—HEEQRNESHA
related company ¥ (Vi) 219 192
Management service income B —EE S AR 8 E Rk
received from an associate A (vii) 1,800 1,800
Interest income charged to an EEASNEII G ETF IS N
associate (viii) 113 -
Purchases from an associate HE B —[MEeE N (ix) 1,901 -
Subcontracting fees paid to an M — S AR NH S
associate 2 A (x) 119 -

Synergy Group Holdings International Limited

Annual Report 2015/2016
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32.Related party transactions -

Continued

(a) - Continued (a) — &
Notes: B
(i) The total leasing service income amounted to approximately (i)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

(Vi)

HK$1,328,000 during the year (2015: HK$1,921,000) was
contributed from related companies, in which Mr. Alastair

Lam’s close relatives are the major shareholders and the key
management personnel. The transactions with the related
companies were negotiated and carried in the ordinary course

of business and at terms agreed between the parties. The trade
receivables due from the related companies as at 31 March 2016
and 2015 are detailed in note 20.

The total leasing service income amounted to approximately (if)
HK$3,818,000 during the year (2015: Nil) was contributed from

Synergy ESCO (Malaysia). The transactions with Synergy ESCO

(Malaysia) were negotiated and carried in the ordinary course of

business and at terms agreed between the parties. The trade

receivables due from Synergy ESCO (Malaysia) as at 31 March

2016 and 2015 are detailed in note 20.

The total sales of goods amounted to approximately HK$5,000 (iii)
during the year (2015: HK$90,000) was contributed from

related companies, in which Mr. Alastair Lam’s and Mr. Arthur

Lam’s close relatives are the major shareholders and the key

management personnel. The transactions with the related

companies were negotiated and carried in the ordinary course of

business and at terms agreed between the parties.

The total sales of goods amounted to approximately HK$552,000 (iv)
during the year ended 31 March 2015 were contributed from

Synergy ESCO (Malaysia). The transactions with Synergy ESCO

(Malaysia) were negotiated and carried in the ordinary course of

business and at terms agreed between the parties. The trade

receivables due from Synergy ESCO (Malaysia) as at 31 March

2016 and 2015 are detailed in note 20.

The Group has paid computer software consultancy service (v)
fees of HK$336,000 during the year (2015: HK$336,000) to a

related company, which is wholly owned by Mr. Mansfield Wong.

The transactions with the related company were negotiated and

carried in the ordinary course of business and at terms agreed

between the parties. The non-trading outstanding balances due

to this related company as at 31 March 2016 and 2015 are

detailed in note 22(b).

The Group has paid rental expenses of approximately (vi)
HK$219,000 during the year (2015: HK$192,000) to a

related company, in which Mr. Arthur Lam’s close relative is a

shareholder. The transactions with the related company were

negotiated and carried in the ordinary course of business and at

terms agreed between the parties.

N.EBMEXRS — &

THERBWALRERAFEL H1,328,0007%8
T (ZZ—FRF :1,921,00087T) © BEER
RIERARRUE - HRMEREENTRAZE
BEAFNEEREREEEEAE - %S
BEARNRZTIETHNS N AEERBRRH
B EGERREET R ANFER_T—
AFE=A=+—ARKEERFANEZEUR
SREEBAR P20 ©

FAERB A BERAFE# 53,818,000
BT (ZT—HF : T) ' ASynergy ESCO
(Malaysia) & Bt 2 78 - #Synergy ESCO
(Malaysia)8V 2 5 Ty RET K177 78 B % % 15812
FIRGE IR REET - RZT—ARFR
—T—h&E= A=+—HEUKSynergy ESCO
(Malaysia)#) & 5 FE R R AF 8RBT 3120 ©

B RIS AERATEYR50008T (ZF

—H%F : 90,000/ 7T) © BEAER R ERAIK
1B - HPMEREE RMEREERTRAZ
SHEBERRMNEIERERTEETIEAS - #Hik
SHERTNRZ BTN N A EERBR
FRIR A TE B IR I P AT ©

EREEREREE—_T—RAF=A=+—8
1EFE#) /552,000 7T + /&Synergy ESCO
(Malaysia) & Bl &I 70E © BiSynergy ESCO
(Malaysia)8V 2 5 Ty RET K77 70 B % % 15812
FIRGE R IBRIETT - RZT—ARFR=
T—HAE=A=+—H ' EUSynergy ESCO
(Malaysia) &) & 5 & Us B S EF A BT 5£20 ©

REED A —FEBEARINAFENE
B 55 R 7 £336,000/8 7T (— T — R 4F ¢
336,000/ 7T) + B ZEE N B REXIEL
E2EWA - BZBAERRNRZTIETAN
A EBIBRPIRGENERBREET o R
—E-ARER-T-RE=ZA=t+—HAEMNZ
FE A RIEE B ARGEHRTBF AR KT E22(D) ©

AEED R —BEERRINAEENTRSH
+ #9219,000% T (ZZF—FRF : 192,000
TT) - HARMEIR S A ET B AR E N AH
—BRE - BZREEARNR STV HEINAR
B £ BT LT ORI EET -

—T-RF T FER

TEREE BB AR AR
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32.Related party transactions -
Continued

(a)

— Continued

Notes: — Continued

(vii)

(vii)

(ix)

The Group has received management service income of
HK$1,800,000 from an associate, Synergy Cooling HK during
the year (2015: HK$1,800,000). The transactions with Synergy
Cooling HK were negotiated and carried in the ordinary course of
business and at terms agreed between the parties.

The Group has charged interest income of approximately
HK$113,000 to an associate, Synergy Cooling HK during the
year (2015: Nil). The transactions with Synergy Cooling HK were
negotiated and carried in the ordinary course of business and at
terms agreed between the parties.

The total purchases of goods amounted to approximately
HK$1,901,000 during the year (2015: Nil) were made from
Synergy Cooling HK. The transactions with Synergy Cooling HK
were negotiated and carried in the ordinary course of business
and at terms agreed between the parties. The trade payables
due to Synergy Cooling HK as at 31 March 2016 are detailed in
note 24.

The Group has paid subcontracting fees of approximately
HK$119,000 during the year (2015: Nil) to an associate, Synergy
Cooling HK. The transactions with the Synergy Cooling HK were
negotiated and carried in the ordinary course of business and at
terms agreed between the parties.

(b) The Group has obtained corporate credit cards from a

bank for daily operational use, which were guaranteed
by Mr. Alastair Lam as at 31 March 2015. The details
of the corporate credit cards limit as at 31 March 2016
and 2015 are set out in note 26(b).

NR.EBMAIXS — &

(a)

(b)

— 15

G

(vii)

(vii)

(ix)

- &

REE T [ —EE & A RDESE = AR BUERA
FEEHEEREKA1,800,000/8 7T (=T —
FF ¢ 1,800,000/ 7T) © EEREEFAEBHNR
STIBEI A7 R BB EBKBREPIRGE R KRR
T -

REE [ — B & A RDER =B E B IKER

AEEHFEWAL113,0008 T (ZF—H
F L) MERTABTBNRS BTN

N BB EBBE TR E BRI REETT o

FRREREABBMELNE REBRAED
1,901,000 7T (ZE—HF | T) - HfEZE
AEBORZTIBATNARASERKBREPIZ
BERGRBEET - RZE—A"F=A=+
—BEMERTATENE HEMNERFHR
MizE24 o

FRANEEC A EARERTABTBL NS
BERL119,0008T (ZE—HF 1 T) -
EERTABTEORZTIHAITNAR A BER
BRI E RIS IR RIETT o

AEBECRRTEFAELERENR
AfERAR ERZZ—HF=A=+—
HEMERAELEER RZF—RFR
—E-RAF=-A=1T—HRRFEERTR
IREE N HIFE26(b) ©
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32.Related party transactions - N.BEAERS — &
Continued
(c) During the year, a Hong Kong subsidiary of the Group (c) RAFE  AKEHN—EEEHBA A

has committed to provide corporate guarantees to
two independent third parties in Malaysia in respect

of equipment lease agreements entered into between
the independent third parties and an associate.

The duration of the agreements were ranging from

48 months to 59 months, with average monthly

rent charged to the associate of approximately RM
23,000 (2015: RM 21,000), accordingly, the potential
outstanding total contractual cash flows of these
agreements amounted to approximately HK$5.4 million
as at 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$4.8 million). The
corporate guarantees include the guarantee of the due
payments and discharge of any and all of the moneys,
obligations and liabilities from time to time due, owning
or incurred by the associate to the independent

third parties with respect to the transactions under
agreement, and also undertaking with the independent
third parties that whenever the associate does not

pay any amount in full when due or expressed to be
due under or in connection with the agreements, the
Hong Kong subsidiary of the Group shall immediately
after the demand for payment pay that amount to the
independent third parties.

(d) Compensation of key management personnel (d)

The remuneration of directors and other members of
key management during the year were as follows:

A ERALNM BB LR =
R B8 A B) AT S A RS AR 40 15 T () 3%
EWUE=HIRBEDRIER - ZEHHE
R EAMR 4818 A =598 AT % © MiAlE%
Bt N a W E e 19 B 49 523,000%
H(ZE—AFE  21,0008F) - WHKE
BER - E—NEFE=ZA=+—HZB
MABEBAENRERENES4EED
T(ZZ—RTF  48FEBET) - %5
NRERBIER N FUER R R &
REITRRBRE TR ZABILE=
FERKEEZHERE  EERKAE
2Rk BESE  BEEKEE - KA
B E = HAERETEEE QR ENR
B B 1575 B HA sk AR R B B BA Y (R R 3R
Bz 28 ALEZEENBA RS
PUER S KBS E S BRI Z S B E=
F AR ERIE -

FTEEEAESNHM

EERhHEMEIRERRERERARFEN
B T

2016 2015

—B-A"F CZT-AOF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FER FAT

Short-term employee benefits HHEEREF 3,312 1,357
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33.Notes to the consolidated statements
of cash flows

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group has transferred certain
construction in progress and lighting systems to
inventories with aggregate net book amount amounting
to approximately HK$569,000 (2015: HK$887,000)
upon the change of usage of lighting products
acquired, resulting from certain leasing contracts have
been reclassified from the form of operating lease to
finance lease.

34.Share option scheme

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
adopted by the Company was approved by its
shareholder on 5 March 2015.

Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share
Option Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from
5 March 2015. Under the Share Option Scheme, the
directors may in its absolute discretion offer to grant
to any qualified participant an option to subscribe for
the number of shares at an exercise price determined
by the directors, being at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the
date of the offer of grant; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the
offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares
of the Company. The offer of a grant of options may be
accepted within 20 business days from the date of the
offer. HK$1.00 is payable by any qualified participant
to the Company on acceptance of the option offer

as consideration for the grant. Qualified participants
include any director or employee (whether full time or
part time) of the Company and its subsidiaries and
associated companies (as defined under Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622).

33.

34.

GERTREBRME

EXFRERS

FR ARETHEARBKLEHOE
REF D EAMERNEREENRHA
EmmARELERYt  AEBEBET
BREFEAAZE 4 A569,00008 7T (— T —
A : 887,000/ 0) MTEE T2 K& FRAF
REEAGE -

BB S

ARFIRAEERAERT ] (R
FDER-_ZT-RF=ARABEHERR
B -

FRIFBUHSIERT B R ERT 8] - T RIREAX
e —E-RAF=-ARABEBEN
SH10F - REBBIESE - EFF
2EBBREMNAERZ2EERHER
B2EH  UHABRERB KD -
TEEHESETE  YWARUTZRS
EF L ()ARBROVE L EL B IR
R ARERMAINZWHE : (AR
AN R B 24 A HIRT AL fE 42
BRI P B RERAT 2 FHK T
B R()ARABRMOEE - 2EET]
RBA B HE20E % B AR N
BRENZY - IRNEERSRERT
BRE2OARANREZM1.0087T -
ERERBRENKE ABKB2EE
BREARALEMBARRBELRT (F
& RBEBAGIZFE622F (R RHER)) ME
MEEIEE (TwmEBFERRE) -
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34.Share option scheme - Continued

The options granted may be exercised in whole or in
part by the grantees. The exercise period of the options
granted shall be a period of time to be notified by the
directors to grantees, which the directors may in its
absolute discretion determine, save that such period
shall not be more than 10 years commencing on the
date of the offer of grant.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon
exercise of the options which may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share options
schemes of the Company (including both exercised
and outstanding options) to each participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares

of the Company then in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to

the Company’s shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under this Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date which
the Company’s shares first commence trading on GEM,
being 50,000,000 shares.

No share options were granted under the Share Option
Scheme during the year (2015: Nil). As at 31 March
2016, there were no outstanding options granted under
the Share Option Scheme (2015: Nil). Share options do
not confer rights to the holders to dividends or to vote
at shareholders’ meetings.

34.BRAETE - &

ARARATEZ BB ER TR
- R THBRETERRAIARES
ERENBETLHNERRA - HEZHE
TRBEBRDEZNBEMEF10F -

BR2EENEM12(8 A BEARITER
BRI A 8 AR A AR (] B A R A4
AHEIER 2 BRE (BRECITRARTTRE
MERE) SR TRTZRSRMHBE T
SHEARRERDETROMNI% - L
E— R NBEIRENBRES AL
ARRRBEERRNBRAS LHLE -

ES A R ) /NI R GIE= Rk
B M 5T B AT B 35 O BB AR AT M ) B
RN EE A X T EBBARAFRNE
KRB ERFAIEE B BB BTRMHA
HH10% + B150,000,0000% k&5 °

FABEREBRETSIRHBERE (=
Z—HF ! T) RZE-—RF=A=+
— B BEREBERES SR ZH
ATEBRE (CT—1F 1 T) - BR
RRER T A AREUIR B R ERK
g LRZMRER -

—E-RF /T RFFR  EREEIERERERAR
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35. Financial risk management objectives

and policies

The board of directors meets periodically to analyse
and formulate measures to manage and monitor the
Group’s exposure to market risk including principally
changes in interest rates and currency exchange
rates, credit risk and liquidity risk. Generally, the
Group employs a conservative strategy regarding its
risk management. As the Group’s exposure to market
risks is kept at a minimum level, the Group has not
used any derivatives or other instruments for hedging
purposes. The Group does not hold or issue derivative
financial instruments for trading purposes. The board
of the directors of the Company reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are

summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest risk respectively.
The interest rate of the Group’s borrowings is disclosed
in note 26. The Group adopts centralised treasury
policies in cash and financial management and focuses
on reducing the Group’s overall interest expenses.

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period.

Floating rate borrowings

Fixed rate borrowings

35. ¢mEMREE B E

= RER

EEeTHRTEESMNEITEE
NEEREEAEEYMGRR (FE26
BRERREBERNED) FERAKRK
REBECRBAET N - REBE—KH

[EL [ B IR EUR SFR RS o BN AR B %
SRR RZ NHEFTEREKE - )
AEBEWEFEREMITET A S
BT EF A - AEEWEFFHE
TERXSRABNTESR T A - AQA)
EEen RAEEEREZERARD
RN o

A R @

AEBFAEHNMNERREEREKH
B o REFBF R REEFEZEHNE
?K%EU&$%E%@%%%%‘JT’H B N

NFEN = E R o A& B /&R =R 5
BRI T26 - AEERAR e VBT
B2 EPIMBHEK - MBI EARE
Ee BN B

TR AL B R HE AR ERFE
#HE -
2016 2015
—E-AF e
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) HK$’000 rate (%) HK$’000
BB FIER (%) FHL BEEFE%) FHIT
TFENR R EER 2.74% to 25,160 -
3.00%
2.74%%
3.00%
& 7E FI = fE 5 6.49% 337 6.49% 449

25,497 449
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35.Financial risk management objectives 35.&FiEREE B ERBER

and policies - Continued

Interest rate risk — Continued

At 31 March 2016, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest

rates, with all other variables held constant, would
decrease/increase the Group’s results for the year by
approximately HK$126,000 (2015: Nil). No impact
would be on other components of consolidated equity
in response to the general increase/decrease in interest
rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for the borrowings in
existence at that date. The 50 basis point increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for year ended 31
March 2015.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s revenue and expenses are mainly in HK$
which is the functional currency of all entities making up
the Group. As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s assets
and liabilities denominated in other currencies other
than HK$ are disclosed in notes 18, 20, 23, 24 and 25.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management monitors foreign
currency exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency
risk of RMB, US$, RM and IDR. As HK$ is pegged

to US$, the Group does not expect any significant
movement in the US$/HK$ exchange rate and this is
excluded from the sensitivity analysis below as in the
opinion of directors, such sensitivity analysis does not
give additional value in view of insignificant movement
in the US$/HKS$ exchange rates as at the reporting
dates.

— &
R — &

RZB—RE=ZA=+—8  HF=x
B A T RRSOEE T M T A H o m]
REHIZ IS BARNEEAEEES
18 REE  HAN#I126,0008 7T (ZE—F
F T o FIREBE FFH O TBRYRS
RN HEMARIDRESE -

B SRES T B BRI KR
BERREL - TERNZAHEARE
B 75 B0 A8 5K T 18D 341 ) 1) 2% [ e T 7
E o BT T BRGOMEER T E I B R
EETEFERRAMHEESERBR
TR RE IR B P ERORTE - &L
E-FT-—HF=A=+—HIEFE &
BADAT TR AR R TT -

SN B

AEBHBARFET EBUBITTE -
IR ASEBNMEER 2GS
o —TB—XNE=ZA=+—H0 K&
BB TN Bt E B ENEER
BEWBENHFE18 - 20 « 23 ~ 24 K25 ©
EAT NEBIWEINEEIRBUR - &

M EEEERINERR  BFENKE
BF 5 i E K IMNEE @ o

AEETEEHARE XL <F
ENEERINERR - BT EETTH
8 AEBEEAXTHETERTG N
BEMEAZE - ERNNHmEAHET
RETHEZRZEH TN - EER/BR
BN EEHEIMEE - WL T
RTXHBERE DT
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35. Financial risk management objectives
and policies - Continued

Foreign currency risk — Continued

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity

of the Group’s results for the year in regards to a

5% appreciation in HK$ against the relevant foreign
currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used which
represents management’s best assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
A 5% depreciation in HK$ against the relevant foreign
currencies would have the same magnitude on the
Group’s results for the year.

RMB to HK$ ARBHETT
RM to HK$ SERBT
IDR to HK$ ElfefE BT

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during

the year depending on the volume of transactions.
Nevertheless, the analysis above is considered to

be representative of the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for the year ended 31 March 2015.

5. emEMREEEERBER

— &
IR — B

TRAVAEBHAREFARELHE
TLRARRIMNEE R THES %I BRAE - R
RHSURE L ER5% - NEREHEE
B T E XA Re BN R ERT S < BT
SARRINE R E5%K - BHAEERF
NEETREREENTE

2016 2015
—g-x% —F-@F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT

282 31

(155) -

(500) -

SN E AR FENEER S M E
B A - ER ST BT RBAE
EEHHINEER - BE-F—RF=
A=+—BILFE - BRHH AR
BT -
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35. Financial risk management objectives
and policies - Continued

Credit risk

The Group enters into trading transaction with

the recognised and reputable third parties. Before
accepting any new lease contract, the Group assesses
the credit quality of each potential lease and might
demand certain customers to place deposits with the
Group at the time the lease arrangement is entered
into. In addition, the Group monitors and controls

the trade receivables regularly to mitigate the risk

of significant exposure from bad debts, reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade receivables
at each reporting date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group has concentration risk upon trade
receivables through trading of lighting products
contributing from an overseas customer in Australia (the
“Australia Customer”) during the year.

5. emEMREEEERBEK

— &
EERK

AEBRZBAIREERIFNFE =TT
TESRS - REMERHEEERZ
Al AKEFESREEHENEEE
EREAVHEZHRAEERETE
FRAKEZMZE - I - "EEE
HIES R B B 5 B AR R » DABRE IR
BERNERRR - WREHRE B SR
A & (BB 2 R B ey A U (] 2 8 -
LARECR LN AT U [0 2 BRAE HE FE 0 R ELIES
BEE - BE  ARETERZFWEL
Efm e

AEBRANERERET —2RORMAE
sShEpP (DRMER]) EITRAERE S
PREAHE S RBRRFEST AR
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35.Financial risk management objectives 35.&FiEREE B ERBIR

and policies - Continued

Credit risk - Continued

The Group’s revenue derived from the Australia
Customer, amounted to approximately HK$35,999,000
(2015: HK$22,305,000) which accounted for
approximately 28% (2015: 20%) of the Group’s

total revenue for the year. The corresponding trade
receivables contributed approximately HK$37,872,000
(2015: HK$15,333,000) which accounted for
approximately 45% (2015: 26%) of the Group’s trade
receivables as at 31 March 2016.

The Group closely monitors the credit risk on individual
customers based on their credit worthiness. In
addition, the Group has assessments which involve
the customer’s past payments history and current
ability to pay and take into account information specific
to customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate.

Credit risk in cash and cash equivalents is mitigated as
cash is deposited in bank of high credit rating.

Fair values

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because of the immediate or short term
maturity.

— &
EEAR - &

RAFE » AEBREBRMNEF B
A#)/435,999,00087T (ZE—HF :
22,305,000/ 70) ' G ANEEF WA A
#)28% (ZZE—HF 1 20%) - tHEE H
JEUBR N4 A37,872,000/8 T (—Z & —
A 15,333,000 70) * EAREER =
%—ﬁ¢:ﬂ:+—amf%fW%%
#4145% —HE :26%) °

ZIKEI&ME‘J%JEE’M*@” EEREE
@ o AN - REERT ARG - EERE
%JEHTAEI’JLE.:Eﬁ&ﬁHﬂ’EEM‘J‘ KEY
e BEFRTAEZEEFPREFPEE
FIEREERBRBENREES -

HRASFRREBEEEFRNRT
BRERREEFEBEYVNEERREEE
1K o

AV
HRAEENERMEERABANHN
RERE > MEQAFEEREREEYE
EXEE -
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35.Financial risk management objectives 35.&FiEREE B ERBER

and policies — Continued — &

Liquidity risk REBESRER

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash AREBEERRERFEEREN G R/TH
and cash equivalents assessed as adequate by the KENBEERIRSEEY  UALEE
management to finance the Group’s operations and REEREES  VERBSRERD
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. BB - REBKBAIAEES RIE
The Group relies on internally generated funding and SIERREESHERRR °

borrowings as significant sources of liquidity.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities, AEERN SR BEZREORTRMATA
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, are FEIERAT
as follows:
Total
contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted On  Within 6 6-12 Within Within Over
amount cashflow demand months months 1-2years 2-3years 3 years
ERRIR ~MEAZE

BEE ReRELE REX AR t-EAR -EWFR MESFR ZFUL
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL TEr  TEr  TEn TAT TEL TEL  TiEn
At 31 March 2016 RZE-REZR
=1+-H
Trade payables BHERER 16,323 16,323 16,323 - - - - -
Accruals and other EAERAREME
payables e 5,214 5,214 - 5,214 - - - -
Borrowings £k 25,497 26,311 15,000 1,180 1,179 2,359 2,313 4,280
Due to a related company fEf{ & A R 5E 112 112 112 - - - - -
47,146 47,960 31,435 6,394 1,179 2,359 2,313 4,280

—E-RE—FANEFEH ENEEERERERAT 141
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35.Financial risk management objectives 35.&FiEREE B ERBIR

and policies — Continued — &
Liquidity risk - Continued REBESEME - &
Total
contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted On  Within 6 6-12 Within Within Over
amount cash flow demand months months 1-2years 2-3years 3 years
BHANE ~MERE

REE ReRELE AEX AEAR t-EAR -EMER ME=FR =ML
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL AL  FTEr FEr  ThEx TAL AL  TEx
At 31 March 2015 R=B-1f
=ZA=t+-H
Trade payables ECTANGE 6,403 6,403 6,408 - - - - -
Accruals and other FErERR AL
payables [EfZRIE 4,624 4,624 - 4,624 - - - -
Borrowings &% 449 506 - 69 69 138 138 92
Due to a related company  FE{ @@ 1 778 120 120 120 - - - - -
11,596 11,653 6,523 4,693 69 138 138 92
36.Financial instruments by category 36. 1R 5 EJ;%J THERITE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of EemIEERMNEREmENT !
financial instruments are as follows:
Financial assets SRMEE
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT T
Loans and receivables B R ER IR
Trade receivables B S R 84,941 58,550
Finance lease receivables JEUEEE R ff’ﬂlﬁ 14,744 1,662
Other receivables H b i R - 2,527
Due from associates Vﬂﬁlﬂﬁﬁ%’& /T/\IE\ 8,667 2,180
Pledged bank deposits EHERRITER 2,500 -
Cash and cash equivalents RWENBESEED 26,576 27,735
137,428 92,654
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36. Financial instruments by category -

36.1ERETHNEMIA — &

Continued
Financial liabilities cREE
2016 2015
—E—XE —ZT-hF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHxT FETT
At amortised costs big: i IDWIN
Trade payables B SR RN 16,323 6,403
Accruals and other payables Bt E AR HEA
FETFRIB 5,214 4,624
Borrowings B 25,497 449
Due to a related company FEfTREE N\ R FIA 112 120
47,146 11,596
37.Capital management 37. EXRERE

The Group’s capital management objectives include:

(i)  to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, so that it continues to
provide returns for owners and benefits for other
stakeholders;

(i) to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(i) to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening
the Group’s risk management capability.

AEENEAEEBFEEE

(i)

RISEE A FBL LR - DA
BRER NEH BRI A AN &
PR A A

XFARENREMER R

REEA A NoR A SR B 8 = b B 12

o

o

b
B

anp>

—E-RF /T RFFR  EREEIERERERAR




Notes to the Financial Statements

B TS ER AR MY RE

31 March 2016
—ZT—XRF=A=+—H

37.Capital management — Continued 37.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure
and shareholders’ returns, taking into consideration
the future capital requirements of the Group and
capital efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability,
projected operating cash flows, projected capital
expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
the net debt to equity ratio. For this purpose net debt is
defined as borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise
new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The net debt to equity ratio at the end of reporting
period was as follows:

BEXEE - &

AEERET PR REREE AL
1 DR BB IBR A AR REE
3 - BT EEERNEEAENOER

N FBRAEERSRE  BREARRX
RIEBIREIREHS -

AR EIRRER F R AR L ) 2 B
ERHEARE - Bt 5 - EFFH
MEZBEFBREMREEED - B
MR REEARL R - ARERERE
RN FRERZIE - i &ET - EE
BRZEN - SBRFEFBRENHE?
ENREREZGHE -

pu

HERREBFRERRLPIAT ¢

Borrowings EN

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERREEFEY
Net debt &% FEE

Total equity PR

Net debt to equity ratio

(==
8

*4}7 N

s

s
T e B e L )

2016 2015
—E—-XEF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHTT
25,497 449
(26,576) (27,735)
(1,079) (27,286)
132,236 96,903
n/afiEH n/a- i i
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